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IN THE MATTER OF THE
APPLICATION OF T-NETIX
TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES,
INC. FOR A CERTIFICATE OF
AUTHORITY TO PROVIDE
INTEREXCHANGE
TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES IN
SOUTH DAKOTA

Public Utilities Commission of the State of South Dakota
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Lance J.M. Steinhart, P.C.
Attorney At Law
6455 East Johns Crossing
Suite 285
Duluth, Georgia 30097

Also Admitted in New York Telephone:
and Marviand Facsimile:

April 11, 2001
YIA OVERNIGHT DELIVERY

My, William Bullard

Executive Director

Bewith Dakota Public Utilities Commission
500 East Capitol Avenue

Ave-Pierre, SD 57501-5070

{603) 773-3201

Re: T-NETIX Telecommunications Services, Inc.
Inmate Service Providers

Diear Mr, Bullard:

Enclosed please find one original and ten (10) copies of T-NETIX Telecommunications
Services, Inc.'s Application for Registration of a Telecommunications Company.

1

! have also enclosed a check in the amount of 5250.00 pavable to the "South Dukot
Public Utilities Commission" for the filing fee, and an extra copy of this cover Tetter (o be dute

stamped and returned to me in the enclosed self-addressed prepaid envelope.

If you have any questions or if [ may provide you with any additional information, pleass
o not hesitate to contact me.

Respectfully submitted, .-

Attorney for T-NETIX Teleconumunications Services, Ing.
Enclosures
ce: Richard Cree



APPLTCATION FOR REGISTRATION
OF T-NETIX TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES, INC.
FILED WITH THE
SOUTH DAKOTA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION

HE MATTER OF THE

ICATION OF

~NETIX TELECOMMUNICATIONS
RVYICES, INC.

~OR AN CRDER

AUTHORIZING THE REGISTRATION

OF APPLICANT AS A

TELECOMMUNICATIONS COMPANY
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APPLICATION

Application is hereby made to th

Jrilities Commission for an Order auth

Telecommunications Services, Inc.
relecommunications company within
following information is furnishes

1. VYame, Address and Telephone Number of
T-NETIX Telecommunicabions

1544 Valwcod Parkway,
Carrollton, Texas
Telephone: {(872)
Toll-Free Customer

2. The name under which the Applicant wiil uwrov

services if different than in 1. abovs:

T-NETIX Telecommunications




3. Applicant's corporate information:

Applicant was organized in the State of

a4

11, 1988. A copy of the Applicant's Article
attached hereto as Exhibit A, A copy of Appli
of Authority to transact business as a

State of South Dakota is attached hereto as Exbibi

i a wholly-owned subsidiary of T-NETIX, Inc., a

corporation.

The Applicant has no principal o

name and address of the Applicant's registered ageant

National Corporate Research, Ltd.
C/0 Marilyn Person

81% West Third

Sierre, South Dakota 57501

The names and address of each

partnership, cooperative, or individual

pwnership or management interest in th

m

the amount and character of the owner
are as follows:

Mame and Address Shares Owned

T-NETIX, INC. 729,004 14

A1l of the above can be reached through
in Section 1 above.




4. Partnership Information:

Hot Applicable.

(%3

Description of Services Applicant intends to offer:

Applicant’s primary business is providing

wrocessing and other services to the corrections ind

services will be limited to cellect calls initiated by
fvom coin telephones in correctional facilities. The
W ?L :} l o

ffer call control features including:

only service; blocked access to “411”, 800/%2

Applicant intends to provide high quality servi

< >3

industry standard blocking rate less than P.Go3

be available on a full-time basis, twenty

F P —
¥ - LU

days a week, to any correctional facilities

to Applicant within the geographic boundari

Eouth Dakota.



. &, Means by which the Applicant intends to provide

gexviges:
Applicant does not own or maintain any transmissi

or switching equipment in the State of South

service Applicant will provide

¥

inmates in prisons. The Applicant will

its underlying carriexr. As a

of presence in the State of

neither owns, leases, nor opers

or other physical facilities in

2, and no such facilities will be used bv

providing service in the State of South Dak

ot E.
7. Geographic Areas in which services will be offered:
Applicant intends to provide services o inmate

facilicvies throughout the State of South Dakota
B. Financial Qualifications:

Applicant is financially qualified to prov
Y g E

interexchange telecommunications services within

in particular, Applicant has adequate access Lo the

necessary to fulfill any obligations it may

gervices in the State of South Dakota.

attached hereto, T-NETIX, Inc.'s Audited Financial

o £

the vears ended December 31, 1998 and December 3

4



Unaudited Financial Statements for the nine

September 30, 2000 for T-NETIX, Inc., which

Applicant has the financial ability to provids the

it proposes to offer.

9. Applicant's complaints and regqulatory matteys contact atnd

how Applicant handles customer billings and customer servics

matters.

All inquiries regarding regulatory matters

addreased to:
Nancy K. Lee, Executive Vice President
1544 Valwood Parkway, Suite 182
Carrollton, Texas 75006
Telephone: (972) 241-1535
Facsimile: (972) 241-15237
E-Mail: nancy.lee@t-netix.com

All inquiries regarding

0
O
E

Kelly Pawless, Customer
1544 Valwood Parkway

-

o
j
1 (D
®

, S
Carrollten, Texas 75006
Telephone: {(972) 241-153%; {(RrOO}
Facsimile: (972) 241-1537
E-Mail: kelly.pawless@r-netix.com

Since the only service Applicant will provide is collect catls from imruates i g

¥

no customers will be billed by Applicant. All calls are colieet calls, therefore, all

be sent to the persons accepting the charges for such calls by incumbent focal exch

companies. Applicant's toll-free number wi!

hours per day, seven days per week, and cust

H

provided in-house by the Applicant.



10. Regulatory Status:

Applicant 1s currently in the process of sbtaining

regquired authorizations from the state regulatory

Ap: ticant is currently authorized to provide

#labama, Arizona, Arkansas, California, Color

Florida, Georgia, Idaho, Illinois

e
o
et
nd
i
it
[0}
=

Kentucky, Louisiana, Maine, Maryland,

Michigan, Minnesota, Mississippi, Missouri,

Movada, New Hampshire, New Jersey, New Mexico,

Carclina, Ohio, Oklahoma, Cregon, Penngylv

Tennessee, Texas, Utah, Vermont, Virginia,
Virginia, Wisconsin and Wyoming.

The Applicant is in good standing with

1‘*’

egulatory agency in the states where it is

certified. The Applicant has never been deni

certification nor withdrawn its request for

gertification in any state.




11. Description of Marketing

Applicant will market its services to correc

facilities located in the State of South Dakota. Al

personnel will have telecommunications service axperis

wpplicant will market through direct sales

ol
3

Applicant does not intend to engage in

this time. Applicant's marketing materials are ouy

developed and are not available at thig rime.

12. Cost Support:

Applicant intends to provide services at a

13. PFederal Tax Identification Nuuber:

75-2212916

14. The Number and Nature of Complaints filed against the
Applicant with any state or federal regulatory commission

regarding the unauthorized switching of a cusbomer's
telecommunications provider and the act of charaing custemer
gervices that have not been ordered:

None

15. Tariff

A copy of Applicant's proposed tariff{ is arta

Exhibit E.
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16, Waivers

Since the Applicant will be providing onlvy o

¥
Ed

inmate correctional facilities, Applicant herebw

regquests waivers from the Commission to provide the

a. Access to Emergency Response Agencies (G111}

b. Access to 800, 950 and 10-10-X¥XX numhers

will be blocked by Applicant; and

C. Access to directory assistance




WHEREFORE, the undersigned Applicant

i

Dakota Public Utilities Commission entar

application.

DATED this }

T-NETIX Telecommunications

st "‘"""—-

g

By: g ;%// e
Lance J.M.~ 8teinhart, Its ©

6455 East Johns Crossing
Suite 285

Duluth, Georgia 30087
(770) 232-8200




State of Texas

™ A -
County of _AALLAS

‘“-C)

richard Cree, being first duly sworn, deposes
he/she is the President of T-NETIX Telecommunic
inc., the Applicant in the proceeding entitled
has 1ead the foregoing application and knows the
thereof; that the same are true of his/her knowledge
Lo matters which are therein stated on informatiaon or
ro those matters he/she believes thsm to be; grus.

rvi‘,,

Racnaxd Cree
President

-
! ;‘u"‘:

My Commission expires: \ﬁ{{iﬁ&?é{fdw

.

’&: SHARON A BECK

MYCOMM&S@NEXH
RES
Octobe;

\D

R R S
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LIST OF EXHIBITS

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY
MARKETING MATERIAL
FPINANCIAL INFORMATION

PROPOSED TARIFF



EXHIBIT A - ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION
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JOHNEON ELYONS (MON) 6.19°00 9:58/8T. 9:53/%0.

SECRETARY OF STATE

CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT
OF

T-NETIX TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES, INC.
RMERLY:
GATEWAY TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

The wndersigned, as Secretary of State of Texas, hereby certifies that the attached Articles
of Amendment for the above named entity have been received in this office and are found
10 eouform teo law.

ACCORDINGLY the undersigned, as Secretary of State, and by virtus of the authority
vesied in the Secvetary by law, hereby issues this Certificate of Amendment,

Drated: June ‘15; 2000
Effective: June 15, 2000

o

Elton Bomer

F Y WY ot .o 3" T




THGERBER JOHNSON LLYONS (MON} 6.19'00 9:58/ST. 9:53/N0. 4800004058 ¥ ¢

Purpoant to the provisions of the Texas Business Carporation Agt, the wnde
BEy UG

WW hﬂﬁhy mds FE Aml@ Qf BLTOOT Sve] 53, ‘ “
ﬁ@% siatemnents in the Office of tha
Segratary ~F Qigun o Taxas |

L The name of the corporation is Gateway Technologies, Inc. JUN 15 z00n

2. Avticle] of the Articles of Incorporation is bezeby amended so 45 to réistgarfliawGe;
ngne of e corporation is T-NETIX Telecommunications Services, Ine.

3. The date of adoption of the amendwment is May 23, 2000.

yosmimous writlen consent of the sole shareholder.
utetanding end eatitled to vole on the amendment

Kigsa: bay 23, 2000

LRy DU RO PRI SRS AN YN MEYTT TELERN] FaRVICED AN NI RTN



SECRETARY OF STATE

CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT o
OF o

. GATEWAY TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
CHARTER NO. 1055484-0

The undersigned, as Secretary of State of Texas, hereby certifies that the attached Articles
of Amendment for the above named entity have been received in this office and are found
ta conform to law.

ACCORDINGLY the undersigned, as Secretary of State, and by virtue of the authority
vested in the Secretary by law, hereby issues this Certificate of Amendment.

Dated: January 10, 1995

Effective: January 10, 1995

Secretary of Stote



FILED

In the Office of the
S { H ] ey 2
ARTICLES OF AMENDMENT Secretary of State of Texaz
TO THE 10
ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION JAN 1 U 1955
OF - .
GATEWAY TECHNOLOGIES, INC. Corporations Section

Pursuant to the provisions of Article 4.04 of the Texas
Business Corporation Act ("TBCA"), Gateway Technologiss, Inc., a
Texas corporation (the “Corporation"), adopts the following
amendment to the Articles of Incorporation of the Corporation:

ARTICLE I

The name of the Corporation is Gateway Technologies, Inc.

ARTICLE II

The following amendment to the Articles of Incorporation of
the Corporation was adopted by the shareholders of the Corporation
by unanimous written consent pursuant to Article 9.10.& of the
TBCA. The amendment alters and replaces Article IV of the Articles
of Incorporation of the Corporation (as amended) in its entirety to
tead as follows:

The total number of shares of all classes of capital stock
which the corporation shall have authority to issue is one wmillion
two hundred fifrvy thousand (1,250,000), of which (a) one million
{1,000,000) shares shall be designated as Common Stock, par valus
$1.00 per share, and (b) two hundred f£ifty thousand ({250,00¢)
ghares shall be designated as Preferred Stock, par value $1.00 per
share.

The following is a statement of the designations, preferences,
limitations, and relative rights, including wvoting rights, in
respect ©of the classes of stock of the corporation and of the
authority with respect thereto expressly vested in the board of
directors of the corporation:

B COMMON _STOCK

1. Each share of Common Stock of the cecrporation shall have
identical rights and privileges in every respect. The holdesrs of
shares of Common Stock shall be entitled to vote upon all matters
gubmitted to a vote of the shareholders of the corporation and
ghall be entitled to one vote for each share of Common Stock held.

2. Subject to the prior rights and preferences, if any,
applicable to shares of the Preferred Stock or any series thereof,
the holders of shares of the Common Stock shall be entitled to
receive such dividends (payable in cash, stock, or otherwise) ag
may be declared thereon by the beard of directors at any time and



from time to time out of any funds of the corporation legally
available therefor.

3. In the event of any voluntary or involuntary
disscelution, or winding-up of the corporation, after
in full of the preferential amounts, if any, to be dis
the holders of shares of the Preferred Stock or any seri
the holders of shares of the Common Stock shall be anti
receive all of the remaining assets of the corporstion
for distribution to its shareholders, ratably in propor ‘m
number of shares of the Common Stock held by them. A lig
dissolution, or winding-up of the corporaticn, as such
used in this Paragraph 3, shall not be desmed to be ouca
or to include any merger of the corporation with or ints
more corporations or other entities, any acquisition or s
the outstanding shares of one or wmore classes s seri
corporation, or any sale, lease, exchange, or othe
all or a part of the assets of the corporation.

B. PREFERRED STOCK

1. Shares of the Preferred Stock may be issued from tims
time in one or more series, the shares of sach seyrieg to xa“e
designations, preferences, limitations, and relative X
lncludlng voting rights, as shall be stated and expresged %@La$ﬁ ;
in a resolution or resolutions providing for the l@b\ of =
series adopted by the board of directors of the curpora mﬁ, 3,
such series of Preferred Stock shall be aﬁsmgnat#mr g
distinguish the shares thereof from the shares of all other
and classes. The board of directors of the corporabticn is i
expressly authorized, subject to the limitationg provided by law,
re establish and designate serieg of the Preferred Stosk, to fiz
the number of shares constituting each series, and o £i3 5
designations and the preferences, limitatiocns, and relavive ric
including voting rights, of the shares of each series amﬁ
variations of the relative rights and preferences ag !
series, and to increase and to decreass the number of
constituting each series, provided that the board of dz“%ﬁ e o R
not decrease the number of shares within a series to less than ol
number of shares within such series that are then *saumﬁ. Thie
relative powers, vrights, preferences, and limitations may w
between and among series of Preferred Stock in any and all respe
so long as all shares of the same series are identical in |
respects, except that shares of any such series issued at diffe
times may have different dates from which dividends mﬁ&
cumulate. The authority of the board of directory of =z
corporation with respect to each series shall include, but shall
not be limited to, the authority to determine the following.:

{(a} ‘The designation of such series;

[N ]



i

>

)  The number of shares iritially constituzing suct
H j

{
series

{c} The rate or rates and the times at which dividend
on the shares of such series shall be paid, the pericds i
respect of which dividends are payable, the conditions upon
such dividends, the relationship and preferences, if any, of
such dividends to dividends payable on any other class or
series of shares, whether or not such dividends shall be
cumulative, partially cumulative, or noncumuiative, if such
dividends shall be cumulative or partially cumulative, the
date or dates from and after which, and the amounts in which,
they shall accumulate, whether such dividends shall be share
dividends, cash or other dividends, or any combination
thereof, and if such dividends shall include share dividends,
whether such share dividends shall be payable in shares of the
same or any other class or series of shares of the corporation
(whather now or hereafter authorized), or any combination
thereof, and the other terms and conditions, if any,
applicable to dividends on shares of such series;

o

(d} Whether or not the shares of such series shall be
redeemable or subject to repurchase at the option of the
corporation or the holder thereof or upon the happening of a
gpacified event, if such shares shall be redeemable, the terms
and conditions of such redemption, including but not limited
to the date or dates upon or after which such shares shall be
redeemable, the amount per share which shall be payable upon
such redemption, which amount may vary under different
conditions and at different redemption dates, and whether such
amount shall be payable in cash, property, or rights,
including securities of the corporation or anothsr
corporation;

{e) The rights of the holders of shares of such series
{(which may vary depending upon the circumstances or nature of
such ligquidation, dissolution, or winding up) in the event of
the voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution, or
winding up of the corporation and the relationship or prefer-
ence, if any, of such rights to rights of holders of stock of
any other class or series. A liquidation, disscluticn, or
winding up of the corporation, as such terms are used in this
subparagraph (e), shall not be deemed to be occasioned by or
to include any merger of the corporation with or into one or
more corporations or other entities, any acquisition or
exchange of the outstanding shares of one or more classes or
series of the corporation, or any sale, lease, exchange, or
other disposition of all or a part of the assets of the
corporation;

(f} Whether or not the shares of such series shall have
vopting powers and, 1f such shares shall have such veting

3



powers, the terms and conditions thereof, including, but not
limived to, the right of the holders of such shares to vote as
& separate class either alone or with the holders of shares of
one oy more other classes or series of stock and the right to
kave more (or less) than one vote per share;

{g} Whether or not a sinking fund shall be provided for
phe redemption of the shares of such series and, if such a
ginking fund shall be provided, the terms and conditions
theraof;

(h) Whether or not a purchase fund shall be provided for
the shares of such series and, if such a purchase fund shall
be provided, the terms and conditions thereof;

{i) Whether or mnot the shares of such series, at the
aption of either the corporation or the holder or upon the
happening of a specified event, shall be convertible into
gtock of any other class or series and, if.such shares shall
be so convertible, the terms and conditions of conversion,
including, but not limited to, any provmslon for the adjust»
ment of the conversion rate or the conversion price; v

{j} Whether or not the shares of such series, at the
option of either the corporation or the holder or upon the
ﬁa@maimng of a specified event, shall be exchangeable for
gegurities, indebtedness, or property of the corporation and,
if sguch shares shall be so exchangeable, the terms and
ponditions of exchange, including, but not limited to, any
provigion for the adjustment of the exchange rate or the
exchange price; and

{k} Any other preferences limitations, and relative
rights as shall not be inconsistent with the provisions of
Lhws Article IV or the limitations provided by law.

2, Except as otherwise required by law or in any resolution
the board of directors creating any series of Preferred Stock,
widers of ghares of Preferred Stock and all series thereof who
snpivled to vote shall vote together with the holders of shares
of Common Stock, and not separately by class.

1. The board of directors of the corporation is hereby
aly empowered, subject to the limitations provided by law, to
a Che corporatlon to pay share dividends on any class or
¥ capital stock of the corporation (whether now or
gy suthorized] payable in shares of the same or any other




e

aeries of capital stock of the corporation (whether now or
amrealtey auythorized) or any combination thereof.

ARTICLE IIIX

The number of shares of the Corporation’s stock outstanding at
time of such adoption was 615,861 and the number of shares
Aled to vote thereon was 615,861,

ARTICLE IV

The holders of all of the outstanding shares of the
wation’s stock entitled to vote on the amendment have signed
Lef consent pursuant to Article 9.10.A of the TBCA adopting
mpndment . Said consent is dated January 3, 1995.

¥,

Bated: January 4§} 1955

GATEWAY TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

By ,ﬁ @%{f/m

Richard E. Cree
President

£ SRt RSB LR a0 srpamend . 1 5



STATEMENT OF DESIGNATIONS, PREFERENCES, LM[TA'I’IONEI H_D
RELATIVE RIGHTS OF SERIES A CONVERTIBLE PREEERREI%Q& éf the
' ' Sacretary of State of Texas

Pursuant to Article 2.13 of the 19
Texas Business Corporation Act JiM13 1995

Coroorations Section

The undersigned President of Gateway Technologies, Inc., a Texas corporation (the
*Corporation™), certifies that pursuant to authority granted to and vested in the Board of
Lirectors of the Corporation by the provisions of the Articles of Incorporation of the Corpora-
tion, a5 amended, and in accordance with the provisions of Article 2.13 of the Business
Corporation Act of the State of Texas, its Board of Directors on January 12, 1995, duly adopted
the fellowing resolutions creating the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock:

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Corporation is authorized, within the
Timitations and restrictions stated in the Articles of Incorporation of the Corporation, as
smended, w fix by resolution or resolutions the designation of each series of stock and the
preferences, limitations, and relative rights, including voting rights, and qualifications, limita-
tions, or restrictions thereof, including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, such
provisions as may be desired concerning voting, redemption, dividends, dissolution; or the
distribution of assets, conversion or exchange, and such other subjects or matters as may be -
fixed by resolution or resolutions of the Board of Directors under the Business Corporaticn Act’
of the State of Texas; and

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the Board of Directors of the Corporation, pursuant to its
authority as aforesaid, to authorize and fix the terms of a series of preferred stock and the
number of shares constituting such series;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that one series of preferred stock is hereby
authorized on the terms and with the provisions herein set forth:

1. Designation, Number of Shares and Stated Value. The designation of the series
of preferred stock authorized by this resolution shall be “Series A Convertible Preferred Stock,”
which shall consist of 30,000 shares of such Series A Convertible Preferrad Stock, $1.00 par
value per share, As used herein, "Stated Value" per share of Series A Convertible Preferred
Stock shall be equal to $20.00 plus all accumulated and unpaid dividends added thereto pursuant-
0 ection 2 hereof. Each share of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock shall be validly issued,
fully paid and nonassessable upon receipt by the Corporation of legal consideration in an amount
determined by the Board of Directors of the Corporation to be at least equal to such Stated
Value, '

2. Dividends

LRS-

(@ 6% Dividend. The holders of shares of Series A Convertible Preferred
Stock shall be entitled to receive, out of the funds of the Corporation legally available therefor,
if, as and when declared by the Board of Directors, cash dividends at the rate of 6% per share




per annuim, on the face value thereof, accruing from February 28, 1995, payable quarterly o
the last day of the months of February, May, August, and November in each year, commencing
May 31, 1995, except that if such date is a Sarurday, Sunday or legal holiday then such dividend
shall be payable on the first immediately preceding day which is not a Sawurday, Sunday or legal
holiday. Such dividends shall be cumulative (whether or not in any quarterly dividend peried
there shall be funds of the Corporation legally available for the payment of such dividends),
commencing on the date of original issue and shall be payable for any peviod less thas a full
quarter on the basis of a year of 360 days with equal 30 day months. Dlividends shall be payable
to holders of record, as they appear on the stock books of the Corporation, oa such record dates
a$ may be declared by the Board of Directors, not more than sixty (60) days nor less than ten
{10) days preceding the payment dates for such dividends. Dividends in arrears may be declared
and paid at any time, without reference to any regular dividend payment date, to holders of
record on such date, not exceeding sixty (60) days preceding the payment date thereof, as may
be fixed by the Board of Directors of the Corporation. When dividends are not paid in full upon
the shares of the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock and any other preferred stock ranking on
a parity as to payment of dividends with the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock {("Parity
Stock™), all dividends declared upon shares of the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock and any
Parity Stock shall be declared pro rata so that the amount of dividends declared per share on
the Series A Converiible Preferred Stock and such Parity, Stock shail in all cases bear to each
other the same ratio that accumulated dividends per share on the shares of the Series A
Convertible Preferred Stock and such Parity Stock bear to zach other.

(b)  Certain Restrictions on Payment. So long as any shares of the Serfes A
Convertible Preferred Stock are outstanding and any dividends due and payable on the Series
A Convertible Preferred Stock are in arrears, the Corporation shall not, without the prior written
consent of a holder or the holders of more than fifty per cent of the issued and cuistanding
shares of Series A Convenible Preferred Stock, declare, pay or set apart for payment any
dividend on any of the Junior Securities (hereinafter defined) or make any payment on account
of, or set apart for payment money for a sinking or other similar fund for, the purchase,
redemnption or other retirement of any of the Junior Securities or any warrants, rights, calls ot
options exercisable for any of the Junior Securities, or make any distribution in respect thereof,
either directly or indirectly, and whether in cash, obligations or shares of stock of the Cerpora-
tion or other property, and shall not permit any corporation or other entity directly or indirectly
controlled by the Corporation to redeem, purchase or otherwise acquire any equity security
{other than the shares of the Corporation’s common stock, par value $1.00 per share {"Common
Stock™), into which the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock is convertible) of the Corporation
(or any non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Corporation); provided, however, that the
Corporation shall be permirted to repurchase (i) shares of the Common Stock of the Corporation
heid by employees, consuliants, officers, or directors pursuant o the terms of any testrictive
stock purchase arrangements under which the Corporation bas the option ot obligation to
repurchase such shares upon the occurrence of certain eveats such as termination of employment




or failure to serve as a director and (ii) shares of the Series A Convertible Preferred Sicek
pursuant to the terms of this Statement of Designations, Preferences, Lxrmiarm'zs mﬁ‘ Relative

Rights of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock.

3. Liguidation Preference.

In the event of any voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up of i:*
affairs of the Corporation, the holders of shares of the Series A Convertible Preferred Stoek then
outstanding shall be entitled to be paid out of the assets of the Corporation av ailable fo
distribution to its stockholders an amount of cash equal to the greater of (a) the amount per share
that holders of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock would be entitled to receive if all of th
shares of Series A Convertible Preferted Stock were convented into Common Stock at the m
of such liquidation, dissolution or winding up or (b) the Stated Value of the Series A Convertibis
Preferred Stock at the time of such liquidation, dissolution or winding up, and oo T“Q“ﬁ %}muw:
any payment shall be made or any assets distributed to the holders of any of the Jun
Securities; provided, however, that the holders of the outstanding shares of Series A {“ ‘ mer&:
Preferred Stock shall not be entitled to receive such liguidation paymert until the Hguid
payments on all outstanding shares of any other stock of the Corporation having lyg
rights ranking prior to the shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock shall have besn g
in full. If the assets of the Corporation are not sufficient to pay in full the Hauidutio
payable to the holders of outstanding shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Suw
outstanding shares of any other stock of the Corporation having liquidation rights o parity w
the shares of the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock, then the holders of all such shares §
share ratably in such distribution of assets in accordance with the amount which would
payable on such distribution if the amounts to which the holders of outsianding shares of §
A Convertible Preferred Stock and the holders of outstanding shares of such other stock of
Corporation are entitled were paid in full. A merger of or by the Corporativn or sale
substantially all assets of the Corporation shall not be deemed to be a Houidation, disss
winding up of the Corporation.

s
3
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4. Ranking.

The Series A Convertible Preferred Stock shali, with respect to dividend cight
distribution of assets on liquidation, rank (2) junior to, or on parity with, as the case may be,
any other stock of the Corporation, the terms of which shall specifically provide that sugt
shall rank senior to, or on parity with, as the case may be, the Series A Convertible Pre mﬁ:&
Stock with respect to dividend rights or distribution of assets on lguidation, and {b} senior
any other stock of the Corporation, including the Common Stock (all of such stoek of the
Corporation to which the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock ranks prior, including te
Common Stock, being referred to collectively for purposes of this Agreemeny as the “Junin
Securities”).



5. Voting Rights. Except as otherwise required by the Corporat
Incorporation (as amended), Bylaws, the Texas Business Corporation Act or &

with respect to any matter.

6. Take-along Rights. In the event there is a bona file offer from 3
acquire more than ﬁfty per cent of the then ox.ast.mdmg Shai‘LS G‘ “unﬁg

A Convertible Preferred Stock shall have the right to convert all ’rm e iﬁ:ig t:h
her shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock into Common Sieck 31 the €8
of one share of Common Stock for each share of Series A Convertible Proferred
"Converted Shares”™) and require the Selling Shareholders (hersin so catled) to
acceptance of the offer on the offeror’s agreement simultaseousty fa} m aegu
proportion of the Converted Shares on the same terms amd ot s apzl 4
acquisition of the Selling Shareholders' shares, and (b) to pay ali autzmmamﬁ drvdesd e
Series A Convertible Preferred Stock then in arrears.

1. Conversion_Rights. On March 1, 1998, the holders of shares of Ser
Convertible Preferred Stock shall have conversion rights as follows:

(a)  Mandatory Conversion or Put Option. Each holder of de
Convertible Preferred Stock shall, within 60 days of but no later than 10 &
1998, by written notice to the Secretary of the Corporation, elecy either
her or its shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock inw the
at the rate of one share of Common Stock for each share of Series A Conve
Stock (the "Conversion Option™), or (ii) to demand that the Corporation rep
her or its shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock at the Stated ¥ ‘
"Redemption Option”}, the election of either (i} or (ii} sbove by the holler or §
Series A Convertible Preferred Stock being mandatory znd, once made as
irrevocable. A holder of the Series A Convertible Preferved Stock whi iixm st
written election described in the preceding sentence shall be deemed
Conversion Option. The Corporation shalt undentake to propars, authorize xnd fssue
Corameon Stock to be issued in connection wnh shams mb;&ct 1 :.hv:t Qaﬁ%r‘smm Cption &

1998.

(0}  Taxes. The Corporation will pay any docuruentary famp xod similar tues
(other than income taxes and ad valorem taxes) that may be payable o respect to a0y &
delivery of shares of Common Stock on conversion of the Saries A Convertible Praferred Suk
pursuant hereto. The Corporation shall not, however, be required to pay any tax whish may be



%
&

payable in respect to any transfer involved in the issue and delivery of hures of
in a name other than that in which the Series A Convertible Preferie
rEglstered and no such issue or delivery shali be madw mﬁam :md ﬁ’ﬁt

8. Notices of Record Date,
recognized courier service to the holders of the Smﬂ A C
known address shown on the stockbook of the Corpo
Corporation shall propose at any time ¢ do any of the follow

(a) to declare any dividend or distribunios
Series A Convertible Preferred Stock, whether in cash, props

{¢) to effect any reclassification or recagimli
the Series A Conventible Preferred Stock cutstanding bvvabeing |
or the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock, respectively: or

(d) to merge or consolidate with or o any
or convey all or substantially ail its property or businzss, of 10 | &

Notice of an event described in parts (b), {c), and {dy above shail
Series A Convertible Preferred Stock at least twenty days
shall be taken in connection with such event.

9. Amendment. Except as may ctherwise be required by the |
Texas, the provisions of this Staterpent mxy be amended or ¢
herewith waived only by the affirmative vole ot written couseat of 2
more than fifty pement of the issued and cutstanding shares of Serien
Stock.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the undersigned have exscuted this S
the Corporation as of the /3 day of January 1995



Title: nglﬁ«cm
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CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT

OF
GATEWAY TECHENOLOGIES, 1INz,

ORMERLY: TELEPHONE MANAGEMENT

1y

The undersigned, as Secretary of State of the State of Texss, hes
the attached Articles of Amendment, duly signed. have bern wecvived &

and are found to conform 1o law.

ACCORDINGLY the undersigned,

authority vested in the Secretary by

copy.

Dated_ NOVEMBER 22, 1989

Qg > B
Q Seervntry 5f xﬁ.&é

of




LSP=-AM(STK)

The State of Texns

Serretary of State
dCT. 2+ 1989

GERALD G BYBEE
1500 AMARILLO NATICNAL BK BLDG BOX 9158
AMARILLC . s TX 79105

RE: ;
TELEPHONE MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS: INC.
CHARTER NUMBER 01055484-00

IT HAS BEEN QUR PLEASURE TOQ APPROVE AND PLACE @M
OF AMENDMENT. THE APPROPRIATE EVIDENCE 15 ATTACHED
AND TEE ORIGINAL hAS BEEN FILED IN THIS OFEICE.

PAYMENT OF THE FILING FEE IS ACKKOWLEDGED 8Y TH{S LETTER.

IF WE CAN 8E GF FURTHER SERVICE AT ANY TiMEs PLEASE LEY 4 ¥

VERY TRULY Yo




LSR=AR{STK)

Secretarg of Btate

CERTIFICATE OF APENDFENT
FOR

TELEPHONE MANAGEMENY SYSTEMSs INCs
CHARTER NUMBER 01055484

THE UNDERSIGMEGy AS SECRETARY OF STATE OF THE STAYE {Ff TEXAS

5

H

3

REBY CERTIFIES THAT ARTICLES OF AMENDMENT HAVE BEEN RECEIVER I8 1%

GFFICE AND ARE FOUND TJ CONFORM TO LAY,
ACCORDINGLY THE UNDERSIGNED, AS SUCH SECRETARY UF STATE: a48

BY VIRTUE OF THE AUTHORITY VESTED IN THE SECRETARY BY LA%s 15§

THIS CERTIFICATE AND ATTACHES HERETO A COPY OF THE ARTICLERS OF

APENDHENT,

DATED OCT. 2+ 1949




ARTICLES OF AMENDMENT
TO THE ARTICLES OF INCORPORATIGN OF
TELEPHONE MANAGEMENT SYSTEME, JHNC.

Pursuant to the provisions of Article 4.84 of
Business Corporation Act, the undersigned corporation ads
following Articles of Amendment to its Articles of Incorper

ARTICLE I

The name of the corporation is TELEPHOWE MAMNAGEMENT
INC.

ARTICLE I

The following amendment to the Articles of Incorporatis
adopted by the shareholders of the corporatlosn on i
September, 1989. Article IV of the Articlas of I:
amended to read as follows:

The aggregate number of shares which the
shall have the authority to issue is
(1,000,000) at a par value o; Oﬁﬁ dﬁi ax
share, <«f which 26 358 ] oF:

currently outatandlng sha;as baz%g aii uf t

issued and outstanding shares of tha corpsration.

The amendment alters or changes Article IV af €
Articles of Incorpecration. The full text of Artisle
this amendment stated as follows:

The aggregate number of shares which
shall have authority to issuse ig 1,068
value.

ARTICLE IIT

' The number of shares of the corporation o
time of such adoption was 300; and the nunber o
to vote thereon was 300.

ARTICLE IV

The holders of all of the shares ﬁUi“tﬂ%nx?*
vote on said amendment have signed a consap® in
said amendment.




ARTICLE V

any exchange, reclassificati

The manner in which
cancellation of issued shares provided for in the

shall be affected, is as follows:
Y authorized $1.00 par vaius

shall be issued in ewch: e
ares of the
for assch

26,358 shares of the newl

shares of the corporation
for the currently issued and outstanding sh

corporation in the ratio of 87.86 new shares
currently outstanding share.

ARTICLE VI

The stated capital of the corporation will be incress By
the amendment from $1,200.00 to $26,358.00, an IisnsEes o

$24,980.00. Capital surplus will be reduced by $:14,950. 05,

DATED this _ 3N /. day of _~diflien for )

PO
23




SECRETARY OF STATE
CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION

OF
TELEPHONE MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS, INC.
CHARTER NO. 1055484

The undersigned, as Secretary of State of Texas, herst
that Articles of Incorporation for the above corporation ¢
pursuant to the provisions of the Texas Busine
have been received in this Office and are found to con

ACCORDINGLY the undersigned, as such Secretary
and by virtue of the authority vested in the Secretary
"issues this Certificate of Incorporation and attaches he
the Articles of Incorporation.

Issuance of this Certificate of Incorporation does
the use of a corporate name in this State in viv] of
another under the federal Trademark Act of 1946, the 7
trademark law, the Assumed Business or Professional Nama /
the common faw.

Dated. FEB, 11 JQ ne |

il fal

“Secretary of

¥

P————



ARTTCLES OF INCORPQORATION
oF
TELEPHONE MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS, INC.

ARTICLE‘E
The name of the corporation is TELEPHONE MANAGEMENT
SYSTZIS, INC.
ARTICLE IT

The period of its duration is perpetual.

ARTICLE III

The purpose or purposes for which the corporatien i

8%

organized are:

The transaction of any or all lawful business for whisk
corporations may be incorporated under this aect, subjest ro
Part Four, Texas Miscellaneous Corporation Act.

ARTICLE IV

The aggregate number of shares which the corporacion

shall have authority to issue is 1,000 at no par value,
ARTICLE V

HThe corporation will not commence business unnil is
has received for the issuance of its shares considevarion of
the value of $1,000.

ARTICLE VI

The address of its registered office ig 468 Wasr BL

Suite 322, Pampa, Tx. 79065, and the name of ity res

3

<
A g
HET

i
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at such address is Harold A. Cree,.



ARTICLE VII
The number of initial directors is three, and the nages

and addresses of the directors are:

George B. Cree, III - 408 W. Kingsmil
Pampa, Tx. 7908

Richard E. Cree 408 W. Ringsmill,
Pampa, Tx. 750863

Hérold A. Cree 408 W.
Pampa,

Amber Cree 408 W.
' Pampa,

ARTICLE VIIX
The name and address of the incorporator is:

Carol Hines




EXHIBIT B




Y O

Certificate of Authori

I, JOYCE HAZELTINE, Secretary of State of the
hereby certify that the Application for a Certific
TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVIC
business in this state duly signed and verified

South Dakota Corporation Acts, have beer ree

conform to law.

ACCORBINGLY and by virtue of the suthors
issue this Certificate of Authority and attach b
to transact business in this state.

5T




SECRETARY OF STATE FILE MUY ,
STATE CAPITOL BECERT B0
500 E. CAPITOL

PIERRE, S.D. 57501-5077

605-773-4845 o ST
A ) 74550 ABPLICATION FOR CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

Pursuant fo the vis
of Authority to t

SDCL, 47-8-7, the undersigned corporation hersby apy
esg,irl} e Slate of South Dakota and for that purmpass
-

statement: b ¥
(1) The nam , ,pommOpgéju T-NETIX Telecomnunications & i
k L Exact corports namel
«ﬁ§§> 4 {) 4$§&
b v \O‘
@ If Rame - of the, Q&?poratxon does not contain the word “corportion”,

or “limitgd"_ or ' does not\&mtam an abbreviation of ane of such words, then
with the y ord or abbrevrétlon which it elects to add thereto for use in this siute is

(3) State where incorporated Texas Federal Tanpayer 104

(4) The date of its incorporation is February 131, 1988
duration, which may be perpetual, IS Pernetual

(5) The address of its principal office in the state or country under e laws of

1544 Valwaond Rlenry Ste. 302, Carrnllton, Tagas

mailing address if different from above is: —_Same : .

(6) The street address, or a statement that there is o street
c/o C T Corporation Svs
the State of South Dakota is_St.reet, Piarre, Scurk

and the pame of its proposed registered agemt in the am-‘;

C. T Corporation System

(7) The purposes which it propases to pursue in the transadtion
are: (state Speclﬁc purpose) Provider of atubomabod L 43 Fint

garrectional facilities.

{8) The names and respective addresses of its direclors ard officars g

Name Officer Title Slemet Addmes Lty

See attached list of
directors and

r

7

{9) The aggregate number of shares which it has authorly o issus, ite
shares without par vaiue, and series, if any, within a class is:

Number Far value per gh
of shares Class Series
1000 000 Common (Ho serisas}

{S. D. - 258 - 7/19/97 )¢ s




{(1) The aggregate number of its issued shares, itemized by classes, par valos of shares, shamy W

parvalug, and series, if any, within a dlass, is:

Number Par value per share or staterment thid shams s
of shares Class Series wilhout par value
129,004 Common ~No series) &% .,08

{11) The amount of its stated capital is $729 .004.00 ,
Shares issued times par value equals stated capital. In the case of no por voiue siock, sl
the consideration received for the issued shares.

{12) This application is accompanied by a CERTIFICATE OF FACT or a CERTIFICATE OF
duly acknowledged by the secretary of state or other officer having custody of corparmte e
courttry under whose laws it is incorporated.

{13) That such corporation shall not directly or indirectly combine or make any confmet with ¢
company, foreign or domestic, through their stockholders or the hustpes or sssiane of s
or with any copartnership or association of persons, or in any manngr whatewer W it 9
the production or regulate the transporation of any product or commodity so a8 to prewsd
in such prices, production or transportation or to establish excessive prices therefor,

{14} That such comporation, as a consideration of its being pemitted to begin or confings |
within the State of South Dakota, will comply with all the laws of the =ai Stss Witk
comporations.

The application must be signed, in the presence of a notary public, by the chairaan of D boass of o
or by the president or by another officer.

1 DECLARE AND AFFIRM UNDER THE PENALTY OF PERJURY THAT THI% ABRLISATIO
TRIJE AND CORRECT. )

Dated 7! S 12200 L L s

i
%,

Bl of _ Texas (ritle)
County of pajias

S . H‘ M 7 : e
ontis _ 2% aayor Jucy | 16200 veneme _Suitéon
personally appeared _Richard E. Cree _ Kricawrs £ o, &
the presidernt of the ﬁ)}t}rﬂ;‘éiﬁﬁ that i desanbeg iy e

. ¥

within instrument and ac‘mﬁwiedg,gg,m% that such mspaiaﬁc;?i- vied saime./
o8y o 3, / : /
My Commission Expires: _[(HZHOMT 1, o, N

B A Sl e Momptl
) . SR tng Patte, , otary Publics
Hotariat Seat s GJ;,JG}W Fﬂa(?:.,( A (N ¥ )

Tededediede fdod dedr iRk d kA ok ok d

< = y . , o . .
st be Sgned by the registered agent listed in numiser sic

aon

CONSENT O WENT BY THE REGISTERED AG

[, £ Corporation System
(name of registered agent)

IS

registerad agent for _T-NETIX Telecommunicatio
{corporate name)

Dated ,7.//;2: B Jem




T-NETIX TELECOMMIN

SERVICES, INC,
OFFICERS & BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Richard E. Cree, President and Director
1544 Valwood Pkwy., Suite 102
Carroilton, Texas 75006

Alvyn A Schopp, Vice President and Directer
2348 E. Millcreek Place
Highiands Ranch, Colorado 80126

Nancy K. Lee, Vice President and Secretary
1544 Valwood Plowy., Suite 102
LCarraiiton, Texas 75006

John Giannanila, Vice President and Assistant Seqrstary
7811 8. Garfield Way
Liteleton, Colorado 80122




EXEIBIT C - MARKETING MATERIAL
Not Available
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
T-NETIX, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of T-NETIX, Ine
December 31, 1999 and 1998, and the related consolidated statements of opertiong,
cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 1999 1
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management, Our respotisik
opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our andits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally aceepted nuditing standars
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assueEnce about w
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes exnmining. on a
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by Managemnt, 1 v
financial statement presentation, We believe that our audits provide a mugonabls &

i

o

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above
respects, the financial position of T-NETIX, Inc. and subsidiaries xs of D
results of their operations and their cash fows for cach of the vears
December 31, 1999, in conformity with generally accepted ascounting pr

KPMG LLY

Denver, Colorado
March 21, 2000



T-NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
? ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents ........................... e Chee s
Accounts receivable, net (note 2) ............... e e
Prepaid expenses ...... e e e
Inventories ..... e e T,
: Total current assets .......vvuer v inn e, P Celeraniitn
Property and equipment, net (note 2} ...... ... ... ... e
Goodwill, net ............. i R e s e
Deferred tax asset .....................
Intangibie and other assets, net (note 2) ........ R, ceisee
Total assets.......... .. e e eeeeees
‘ LIABILITTES AND STOCKHOLDERS EGUITY
Liabilities:
Accounts payable .. ... e e e
. Accrued labilities (note 2) ......... R
Debt (note 5)........cooivininn... e e e
Total current liabilities ....................... .
Long term debt (note 3) .......coviieiii., e
Total liabilities .. .. ..

Stockholders’ equity (note 6);
Preferred stock, $.01 stated value, 10,000,000 shires authorized: so shares
Commion stock, $.01 stated value, 70,000,000 shares suthoeis

12,225,634 shares issued and outstanding at Decetiibar 35,
respectively ...........
Additional paid-in capital ........ ... . 0 i il
Accumulated deficit. . ...... e

Total stockholders’ equity ......... et ieneree e

Commitments and contingencies (note 9)
Total liabilities and stockholders' equily . ..o it e e s s

See accompanying notes © conselidured §




T-NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended December 31,
{amoants in trousandy, sxeept
Y share RBoEHs

Revenue:
Telecommunications SErVICes . . .........oueveeenr e £30.274 343089
Direct call provisioning................... ... ... ... ... ... .. 1517 YR8
Equipment sales and other........... ... .. . ... .. .. L. 6,444 1416
Total revenue. ..., ... .. . 73235 a8y
Expenses:
Operating costs and expenses:
Telecommunications services . .. ........ovurereren e 17,674 17,004
Direct call provisioning..................... ... . 25032 20.M8
Cost of equipment sold and other............ccovvvrernennnn ..., 14613 _Bay
Total operating costs and expenses . ................o....... 46,321 EYA TRV
Selling, general and administrative ............................... 13,894 L340
Research and development ................................. . '8 3.9%6
Impairment of telecommunications assets ......................... . -
Depreciation and amortization. ............ ... .. ... ... .. ... ... .. 11,820
Total expenses . ............ ... ... . . 81 4443
Operating income (loss) ................ccooiviiiini . {8,210
Merger transaction eXpenses ..................oo e (L
Interest and other income (expense), net ..............ooo oo {2,137
Earnings (loss) before income taxes. ....................... {1,384}

Income tax benefit (expense) (note 8)

NWet earnings (loss)

.............................................

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial sttements.




T-NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STCCKHOLDERS EGUITY

_ Comsman Stock A%ii;;?;x;ﬂ Agesmolated Simgﬁﬁgi
Shares  Amount  Capital Peficit Sanite
{amounts iy thoweandsh
Balances at January 1, 1997 ... i 11,505 $ 115 330,130 % {3279y § 26968
Common stock issued upon exercise of
StOCK OPHOMS « + v v v e vcrnn e s st 155 2 M e
Common stock issued in business acquisition...... g - 94 i
: Common stock issued forcash.......coovevvnen 202 2 598 s
t Dividends paid to preferred stockholders ......... — — - {36y
Tax benefit from stock options exercised (note 8) —— e 4{¥2 .
Net EATNINES <+ v v vvseraeamrormmrerssssre s — -— s 745
Balances at December 31, 1997 ...........cviees 11,870 119 31,428 {15703
Common stock issued upon exercise of
StOCK OPHOMS .« « o\ o vvvveesemman e
Conversion of preferred stock . .....vveien
- Purchase of treasury StGek .....oooernveeraneren
- Stock COMPENSALON . ..o\ vvvvovnreen s
Dividends paid to preferred stockholders .........

Tax benefit from stock options exercised (note 8)
Adjustments to conform year ends of combined

COMPANIES .« o vvvrenernnes s ntes
NEt AMINES « v v v vvvmernermmran s
Balances at December 31,1998 /. ... ..o et
Common stock issued upon exercise of

StOCK OPHONS . .+ v vvvvvvrenr e o
Common stock issued for intangible asset

(ROtE 3) v ovevin e es e e
S T D
Balances at December 31, 1999 ........covvvees

See accompanying notes 1o consolidatad financial statermnents.

!
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T-NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31,
1959 1998 e
(amounts in thousands}

Casti flows from operating activities:
Net eamings (1058) oo vvui ittt U $(10,247) § 270§ 1748
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash provided by

operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization. . ... vvviaiie i 11,620 10,174 9,546
Impairment loss and investment write-off .......... ..ol 4,632 600 s
Deferred income tax expense (benefit) ... (LT I3 570
Loss {gain) on sale of property and equipment .................. (206) {8%) &
Stock compensation SXPENSE ... ....virerriir i — 15 -
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Change in accounts receivable, net.......ooovn v (263) 1,680 {35,308)
Change in prepaid eXpPenses, .. ....oeovevv st erneeriieeaanan, {48} {678) {18
Change in MVENIOTY .. ... . .ttt e e e (441) (164) 15
Change in intangibles and other assets............. ... ..ot {593} {321y ¥ty
Change in accounts payable......... .. .ot 6,972 {349
Change in accrued labilities .. ......o vl 1,907 (670
Cash provided by operating activities ............. ... ...l 12,216 10,443
Cash used in investing activities:
Capital expenditures .. ... ...ttt e e e e {14,560) {6,180
Acquisition of business or business assets ... ... .ot {1,371 {2.679)
Proceeds from disposal or property and equipment................ 473 124
Other investing activities .. ... v e (980) {24603
Cash used in investing activities .. ........ ... it (16444 (11208}
Cash flows from financing activities:
Net proceeds (payments) under line of eredit ................... f 1,489 {5318} & 165
Payments of debt .. ....oneit i e {8,078) {3.064) £3,3863
Proceeds from debt. ... e e e 5TH N,
Common stock issued for cash under option plans . .......... ... 57 b4 A
Common stock issued forcash ......... ... . .o i, i -
Treasury stock purchased . . ....... . o i e {124} s
Dividends on preferred stock .......... .. ... i e e {99 {36
Redemption on preferred stock ... it — {1y s
Cash provided by (used in ) financing activities.............. 3,868 1,030 R
MNet increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents . .............. {3603 65 #H
Adjustment to conform year ends of combined companies ........... s 48
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year .................... 78 a5

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ........... ... ... L 3 18 %5 61
Cash paid fOr INEIEST . o\ o\ v vt e ettt e e e ie e iabaaens 5 2568 § Lm3
Cach paid for income taxes . .ooov v i i v § 7 5 61z 5 9

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



T-NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 1999 and 1998

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
General
T-NETIX, Inc. and subsidiaries (“T-NETIX" or the “Company”} was incorporated in Color

1986. The Company has three reportable segments the Corrections Division, the Internet Services Division
and the SpeakEZ Division (“SpeakEZ").

The Corrections Division primarily manages its specialized telecommunications hardwire ang
systems for long distance and local exchange carriers on a contractual basis. The long distance
exchange carriers in turn pay a fee per call to the Company for each billable cali made from a ph
a contract with the Company. The Company also receives revenue from billing collect &
correctional facilities in which the Company's specialized telecommunications hardware and sofl
are located. The Internet Services Division provides interLATA Internet services to Internet subs ;
buys and resells Internet bandwidth. SpeakEZ engages in the rescarch and development and ssbes amd
marketing of speaker verification technology.

Basis of Presentation

On June 14, 1999, the Company completed a merger with Gateway Technologies, fne. (G
privately held provider of inmate calling services. As a result of the merger, Gateway becam ;
subsidiary of the Company. Prior to the merger, the Company changed its yeur-e¢nd frows B
December 31. Gateway's year-end was December 31.

The merger was accounted for as a pooling of interests. As 3 result, the Company’s
have been restated to combine Gateway's financial statements as if the meeger had escutred 3
of the earliest period presented. [nformation congerning common stock and per share data s o
on an equivalent share basis.

The consolidated statements of operations and cash fows for the years ended Decemher 3, woned
1997 have been recast to reflect the results of operations and cash flows for T-METEX for yidiod
July 31, 1998 and 1997, respectively, combined with Gateway for the yoars ended December e

1997.

As a result of T-NETIX and Gateway having different fiscal year ey price o J9K
operations of T-NETIX for the five month period ended December 31, 1998, have be
reported results of operations. The net lass for the period and comman stonk trangsct
have been accounted for as an adjustment of stockholders” equity at January L, 1999, 1=
expenses, and net loss of $15,041,000, $17,606,000, and $2,235,000, respestively, fof the B
ended Decemnber 31, 1998.

Liquidity

The Company incurred losses from continuing operations in the current yes
working capital deficit of $8.2 million at December 31, 1999. The Company faiepie
relating to various covenant violations on its bank credit facility. In connes Tt
agreed to revise the existing covenant requircments if the Company can rajse 87 s
on or before April 14, 2000. The funds taised arc required to be wsed to eodion the ©
credit facility. These factors among others may indicate that the Crompaty may
obligations as they become due or the Company may have to significantly reduie i
operations.
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T-NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

The Company has taken steps to obtain the additional financing, on or before the deadiine of April 14,
2000, by entering into term sheets to issue convertible preferred securities to a non-rejated party and
subordinated debt instruments to one of the Company’s directors. Management believes thut they will
complete the above financing arrangements in the time frame imposed by the lenders. Should the Company be
unable to complete the financing arrangements or an alternative financing arrangement by the deadiine
currently imposed by the lenders, the Company would again be in breach of the loan agreement covenantys and
the lenders could commence immediate collection activity,

In addition, the Company is taking steps to increase cash flow from operations and obtain additisnat
financing to ensure that the Company is able to carry out its fiscal 2000 business plan. There can be s
assurance that the Company will be successful in increasing its cash flow from operations or that addi
financing will be available, or if available, will be obtained on acceptable terms.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries. Alf
significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with gencrally accepted aceounting
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of as
liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financiy statamients and the
reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from these
estimates.

Risks and Uncertainties

A majority of the Company’s revenue is generated from services provided to significant tel SEORTAT I G
tions customers. The loss of a major customer could affect operating results adversely,

Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid investments, such as certificates of deposit and smoncy murket
funds, with original maturities of 90 days or less.

Fair Vaiue of Financial Instruments

The reported amounts of the Company’s financial instruments including cash and cash equbvainty,

receivables, accounts payable, and accrued liabilities approximate fair value dus to their short masuris
reported amounts of debt approximate fair value due to market interest rates that these debty bese,

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments which petentially expose the' Company to concentrations of eradit gk
primarily of cash and cash equivalents and accounts receivable. The Company's revenue is
concentrated in the United States in the telecommunications industry. The Company had tr
receivable from 5 customers that comprised 28% and 31% of total trade accounts receivadile gt Deges
1995 and 1998, respectively. The Company does not require collateral on accounts receivuble i
provides allowances for potential credit losses. An allowance for deubtful accounts has beern es
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T-NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued}

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

on historical experience and management’s evaluation of outstanding accounts receivable at the end of the
accounting period.

Inventories

[aventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined using the firsteiz, Hrsteout
method. Provisions, when required, are made to reduce excess and obsolete inventories to thelr estimated et
realizable values.

Property and Equipmenti

Property and equipment is stated at cost, including costs necessary 10 place such propesty aitd equips
in service. Major renewals and improvements are capiialized, while repairs and maintenance st shirged
operations as incurred.

Construction in progress represents the cost of material purchases and construction ¢Uss
interest capitalized during construction, for telecommunications hardware systems in vad
completion. During the years ended December 31, 1999, 1998 and 1997, interest capitalizad wis |

e
&

Depreciation is computed on 2 straight-line basis using estimated useful tives of 310 7
telecommunications equipment and 5 to 10 years for office equipment. No depreciation is ree
construction in progress until the asset is placed in service.

Intangible and Other Assels

Other assets include intellectual property assets, capitalized computes softwars, patent dal
application costs, deposits and long-term prepayments and other intangible assets. Pulents o
assets are stated at cost. Amortization is computed on the straight-line basis over 17 yeurs §
periods ranging from 3 to 7 years for other intangibles. Amortization chagged o expense
$936,000, and $796,000 for the years ended December 31, 1999, 1998 and 1997, wspestive

Goodwill

Goodwill, representing the excess of the cost over the net tangible and identifiable assets of th
businesses, is stated at cost and is amortized, principally on a straight-line basis, over the 2st
periods to be benefited 5 to 10 years. On an annual basis, the Cutnpany reviews the ecoverability of @
based primarily on an analysis of undiscounted cash flows from the seruired bosiness. Astus
amortization amounted to $1,103,000 and $364,000 at December 31, 1999 ard 1999, e by

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company reviews its property and cquipment and unamortized intangible atsety wi
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not bs revavarable. 4
the future cash flows expected to result from operatians and if the sum of the expec
cash flows is less than the carrying amount of the tong-lived asset, the Company et
by reducing the unamortized cost of the long-lived ass¢t to ity estimated falr value.

During the year ended December 31, 1999, the Company recarded at {enpares
nications assets of $4,632,000. Impaired telecommunications assets consisted of
construction in progress, and inmate calling platform assets. Two events ocouet
carrying value of certain equipment and intangible assets may not be reeostzaing.

F.§



T-NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

{1} Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

In September, 1999, the Company completed an evaluation of the future viability of its now ins
calling platform (DL Platform”) which it had been developing over the past two years. The mee
Gateway allowed the Company to consider an alternative to the DL Platform. The Company determis

and upgrades of existing customers. However, over the iast year the Company had been awarde
contracts where the DL Platform was to be deployed. Since the Company believes that it would gt &
effective to maintain and support two separate systems, the Company procreded to rencgotiote af
contracts to install ComBridge instead of the DL Platform. During the quarter ended Septeraber 30, 1
(.ompdny successfully complctcd thcsc negotiations, Due to the abandonmcm af im, DL

DL Platform. Capitalized costs rciating to the DL Platform included software dev‘al'o';;mem i
{consisting of primarily telephony cards) and other supporting computer peripheral eguipment,
impairment, being the excess of the carrying amounts over the respective estimated fair v’u?
is appmtxmately $3, 669 000 for the ycar ended December 31, 1999 A\ a re\u[t wtfwan. d

ﬂ& wi g

xmpam:d by M 576,000. A1l of these charges are applicable to thL C cm:n.mm Dﬁ S0

In addition, the Company deployed a version of its old inmate calling platform that resides
customer's network locations. The Company has recently experienced a reduction i it
revenues for this platform. The customer has indicated to the Company that it doey
platform as a source of future services. Additionally, since the platform was based o
DL Platform, there is not an upgrade path available for the new platform. Any new fe
would be evaluated based on the new ComBridge Platform. The reduction in eall vol
estimated fair value of these assets to be less than the existing book value. The Compus
value of these assets based on the discounted cash flows from each service locabion.
minimal salvage value of these assets due to their specific use, the Compuny resorded
approximately $963,000. This charge was applicable to the Corrections Divish

Revenue Recognition

Revenue and expenses from telecommunications services and dircet cull srow
the time the telephone call is completed. Provision is made for uneolleetible aoas
provisioning revenue is recorded. Revenue from equipment sales is recognizad when
to customers. Internet services are recognized as the services are provided. The €
revenue for advance billings to customers, or prepayments by customears prior to the com
or pricr to the provision of contractual bandwidth usage.

The Company recognizes revenue from the sale of computer software in soeords
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“AICPA”), Statement of Position 972§
Recognition” (“SOP 97-2"), as amended by Statement of Position 984, “Defarral of the B
Provision of SOP 97-2” (“SOP 98-4").

SOP 97-2 and SOP 98-4 generally require revenue eamned on softears 2
clements (ie. software products, upgrades/snhancements, post contrast wa&%mr
training , etc.) to be allocated to each clement based on the relative {air vajue of ¢
of an element must be recognized upon delivery of the products. The resssue
custormer support generally is recognized ratably over the term of the suppart and
service elements (such as training and installation) generally is recognized «ss the 5o
vendor does not have evidence of the fair value of all elements in a multipls-slomer
from the arrangement is deferred until such evidence cxists or until all mcrv*cn"*

et g
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T-NETIX, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS « ¢

(1) Summary of Sigrificant Accounting Policies {continued)

In December 1998, the AICPA issucd Statement of Pasition 98 2
Revenue Recognition, With Respect to Certain Transactions” ("8OP ‘754 77y, SE
the *“residual method” for recognition of revenue when wr’edﬂt i
undelivered elements but does not exist for delivered elernen
be required to comply with the provisions of SOP 98-9 for tra g
The Company believes the adoption of SOP 98-9 will not have & matm& :
statements, results of operations or financial condition,

Research and Development

Costs associated with the research and development of new tech:
technology are charged to operations as incurred. Software devel
accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Stan £ M
Software to be Sold, Leased or Otherwise Marfwied, Uwder the
development costs begins upon the establishment of technologl
considerations. Capitalized software costs are amortizved avar Hio esonos
which is generally estimated to be three years.

The American Institute of Certified Public Accan
*“Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software Devele
provides guidance for the accounting for compuict 3!
the requirement to capitalize specified costs, There wem e
December 31, 1999 and 1998.

401 (k) Plan

The Company established a 401 (k) plan for oli of
June 1998, the Company implemented a matching
25% of an employee’s contribution up to 6% of the ine
and plan expenses were $111,000 for the year caded Pag
ended December 31, 1998.

Income Taxes

The Company utilizes the asset and Hubility mathod of
deferred tax assets and liabilitics are recognized for ¢
between the financial statement carrying smounty of
bases and operating loss and tax credit carrylorwards. D
enacted income tax rates expected to apply o tuxabls in
expected to be recovered or settied. The effect on deferred ¢
rates is recognized in the results of operations in the g

Earnings {Loss) Per Common Share

Earnings (loss) per commaon shars are protents
Financial Accounting Standards No. 128, Egrnings #
dilution for common stock equivalents and is comipet
shareholders by the weighted sverage nuwmber of @
earnings per share reflect the potential dilution t
common stock were exercised or converted Inte &

B
z,



{1} Dummary of Sippificen: Acosssting Pa

YT 000 common stock
affect would be amx—d'w_msvt, E
squivalent shares outstanding m«:wd:s -
consisting of stock options, detenmined nnde

Stock Compensation

The Company accounts for employee siock r:;
“Aecounting for Stock Issued to Employees™ ("APB 2377
described in Statement of Financial Accounting btand 7l
Compensation” (“SFAS 123"), which requires pro forma d
value based method of accounting for stock-based compensati

Comprehensive Income

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards 130, “Reperting C:

establishes standards for reporting and display of comprehensive income ¢
general-purpose financial statements. The objective of SFAS 130 is to ¢
equity of an enterprise that result from transactions and other ecuns
transactions with stockholders (“comprehensive income”). Comprehengis
income (loss) and all other non-owner changes in equity. For the year eaded
1997, the Company’s comprehensive earnings (loss) was cqual to net earnd

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncement

In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued St
Standards No. 133, (SFAS 133), “Accounting for Dertvative Instrume
statement establishes accounting and reporting standards Tor deoriva
derivative instruments embedded in other contracts {colleetively rafersed
activities. The statement requires companies to recognize af derivative
'mstmm“nts measured at fair valuc The accormlin" for ch:mx:m i" faty

Effective Datc of FASB No. 133 — An amendment of M%B B
effective date of SFAS 133 to all fiscal quarters of all fiscal ve.m :
does not expect the adoption of SFAS 133 to have a mate
operations.

Reclassification

Certain amouats in the 1998 aad 1997 financial stand
presentaion.
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T-NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ~ {Coutined)

(2) Balance Sheet Components

Accounts receivable consist of the following:

Theeambur 5,
1o e

T

Accounts receivable, net:

Trade accounts receivable .........
Direct call provisioning receivable ......... e Cereneen
Customer reimbursable receivable ....... ... it
Other receivables . . ..........--. P

Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts ..... R e iaeaes

Bad debt expense was $4,981,000, $4,930,000, and $3,785,000 for the yeats ¢nd
1998 and 1997, respectively.

Property and equipment consist of the following:

Property and equipment, net:
Telecommunications eqUIPIEnt «c .o v v avvmrerveracnnas
Construction in progress .....
Office equipment . ... .. e

Less: Accumulated depreciation and amottization .. oo

Intangible and other assets consist of the following:

Intangible and other assets, nct:
Patent license rights. .........
Purchased technology assets .. .. covvvevirvrracncnncns
Capitalized software development COSES. «vvncvvirveerene
Acquired software {eChnOlOBIES « v vvvvvnvnrrrccoravennss
Patent defense and application €osts .. covovavrvrriiininns

Deposits and long-term prepayments ... ooh et e aene e
161311 PP e
Less: Accumulated amorfization . ..ocoviariiiinien
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T-NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continged)

(2} Balance Sheet Components — {continued)
Accrued liabilities consist of the following:

Pecember 3,

(amoants 6 Souseedst

Accrued liabilities:

Deferred revenue and customer advances ..., iii. ..
Compensation related .. ... .. ..o iiiii i .
Other............o v . e e e e

(3) Mergers and Acquisitions

Gateway

On June 14, 1999, the Company completed a merger with Gateway, by exchanging
common stock for all of the common stock of Gateway. Each share of Gutewsy w
5.0375 shares of T-NETIX common stock. Qutstanding Gateway stack options were afse converted ;
same exchange factor into options to purchase approximately 379,000 shares of T-NETEX consnen sfo

In addition, in connection with the merger transaction, T-NETIX issued 375341 shares of comm
to certain shareholders of Gateway in exchange for terminating a royalty agreement. The &
related to automated call processing technology and intellectual property rights that were
by the royalty owners in exchange for royalty paymeats. The termination of the royalty
resulted in the acquisition of an intangible asset. The asset has been recoeded at fair v
fair value is based on the value of T-NETIX common stock at February 18 1 ' the
Agreement), or $6.625, times the number of shares issued in exchange for termination of e rovalt
interests. The intangible asset has been recorded in patent license rights and hay an estbmatad s
10 years, the remaining term of the underlying patent.

Selected financial data of T-NETIX and Gateway, pricr to the merger wers g foflows:

Three Months Ewded
Tfarch 31,

L

Revenue: .
T-NETIX .. i $ 8,669
Gateway........ e sl
Combined ...........coiii it $ 1R
Net earnings (loss):
T-NETIX ... 5 {1.07%)
GatEWAY . .. .o ver 245
Combined .......ovvevereaniiiiins TN 5 (832
Transactions between T-NETIX and Gateway prior to the merger consisted of rovenus fo

licensing agreement. All such amounts have been eliminated in the restated consotidated &
There were no material adjustments required to conform the accounting palicies of the
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T-NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — {Continued}

(3) Mergers and Acquisitions — (continued)

Certain reclassifications were made to the Gateway financial statamests
presentations.

In connection with the merger, the Company incurred merger :‘r:ixmah.nan
year ended December 31, 1999. Merger transaction expenses consisied §
bankers, attorneys, accountants, financial printing and other refated charg

X ﬂ;

Evans and Ricker Acquisition

Effective October 28, 1999, the Company completed the acquisition of &
Evans and Ricker (“E&R"), of Portland, Oregon. E&R speciatize in softsy
information for correctional facilities. E&R’s product, Lock asd Trek €
(“Lock & Track™”) is a comprehensive relational database desxg,md oy hand!
reportmg needs of mumclpal state, fcdcral and}ar pn**am cotrectional fach

purchase method of accounting. The results of operations assoe
the Company’s financial statements beginning November 1, 1999,
have been recorded at their fair values. The assets acquired wers ¢
The estimated excess of cost over the estimated farr value of the &
$1.3 million was allocated principally to goodwill, which will be zm
The remaining net assets acquired were primarily current ass
liabilities (accounts payable and accrued labilities}. The acquish
Company’s line of credit. Pro forma information giving ¢ ‘ﬁfcct t‘v thle ag
forma results do not vary materially from the Company's recordad sl
significant in 1998 or 1997.

(4) SpeakEZ Operations

In December 1998, the Company hegan an evaluation of the Spe
best course of action was lo combine its research wwd devels
New Jersey with its corporate operations in Englewsod, Colarsde, T
of the Company's former chief executive officer on December 9, ¢
time in the SpeakEZ Division. For the five months ended Dece
of the severance agreement or approximately $240000 1o Speak
expense.

The Company completed the rzorganization of SpeakBEZ vouerath
tion also included a change in the marketing strategy from o disger ¢
licensing strategy. A direct customer sales strategy murkets 3 ape
specific, end user customer. The strategy is then to And gther e
systems and market this product to them. In z.nmms{, a feehmology |
customer who can integrate the SpeakEZ soltware produst i
such as a computer manufacturer, is then responsible for the progius
end user customer.

The change in marketing approach noted abeve requiredt the ¢
all products in the SpeakEZ Division. As a result of Gis &
capitalized cost for SpeakEZ products, some of which weuld na !
realizable value. For the five months ended Decormbar 3, 199
for a reduction in the carrying value of such eaphalized co

Feld



T-NETIX, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS = {

{4) SpeakEZ Operations (continued)

The Company also recognized a loss in the SpeakEZ Division on o #ate
partner for $300,000. In December 1998, the venture partner sotified the Loy
capital prior to January 1999 were not progressing according to plan amd s o v
meet its obligations as they became due.

(5} Debt

Debt at December 31, 1999 and 1998 is summarized a3 follows

s
faktrads U thowstadss

Debt:
Bank lines of credit ...............
Advances on direct call processing.

Notes payable to stockholders .........

MNotes payable to banks . ..............

Other...... e e e e
Less current portion. . ... e

Non current portion

In September 1999, the Company entered into & Senfor Hee
Facility’) with its commercial bank. The Credit Facility provides §
to limitations based on financial covenant calealations. The Credit ¥
component of $15,000,000 at an interest rate of LIBOR plus
LIBOR component of $10,000,000 at an interest rme of L

annum on the unused paortion of the line of eredit,

The Credit Facility is collateralized by substantially all of the swers of the
the Credit Facility, the Company is required to maintain certain fing

amortization (EBITDA) ratio, a ratio of fixed charges {interest
minimum quarterly EBITDA. The Agreement also prohibits
indebtedness.

At December 31, 1999 the Company was in violation of certais sov

a waiver from its lenders relating 1o various covenant violations. In commeition w
agreed to revise the existing covenant requirenients if the Company can ralse
ou or before April 14, 2000. The funds raised are required to e ueed 1o po
Credit Facility. The terms of the bank dictate that $7 million of the Cradit
the remaining balance of the facility due April 30, 200F. The wmnount of
available to the Company is dependent upon our financial performance aml ma




T-NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - fCantimdy

(6) Stockholders’ Equity
Stock Option Plans

The Company has reserved 1,850,000 shares of common stoek for crpiay
under various stock option plans (collectively the “Plans™): the 1991 Incentiv
ISO Plan™); the 1991 Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan (“the {991 N30 P’
Stock Option Plan (“the 1993 1SO Plan™). The Plans provide fot fssuing both §
non-qualified stock options, which must be grunted at not less thos OGS of the B
on the date of grant. All options to date have been granted at the fuie o
by the Board of Directors. Options issued prior to 1994 had vesting tetm ¢
grant. Substantially all of the Incentive Stock Options {ssued after 19973 vast over iy
grant. The options expire ten years from the date of grant.

W

A summary of the Company's stock option activity, and related information gy
is as follows:

Hhures Avatiebie

tar &

Balance at January 1, 1997 ... R

Granted o v ii e {ti
BExercised ... .oveevrrormaremnses s .
Canceled .......
Balance at December 31,1997 e
Granted ........o0on -
Baercised ... .o v oot R
Canceled ........-
BalanccatDecemberBl,1998. ......
Grented .......-- e
Exercised . ... .ccovuevmmarsvns=s
Canceled ...... e s
Balance at December 31, 1999 . .. vevieon

The range of exercise prices for common stosk options ortatanding aned of
ber 31, 1999 is as follows:

QOptions Outstanding

Weigdted

AYEragey

Pemaining
Range of Number of Contracinal
Exercise Price __Shares e
$ 0.20 281,475 .3 vaias
% 1.61 307,450 6.7 yrars
$ 3.00-84.11 154,090 4.4 yrars
% 4,12-55.48 222,800 G.2 yeass
$ 5.49-57.24 455,525 6.2 veury
$ 7.25 394,750 6.1 years
$ 7.26-510.99 53,000 1.9 years
$11.00-513.71 50,000 6.0 years
$ 0.20-513.71 1,919,130 5.8 years

"~



T-NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conthonued)

(6) Stockholders’ Equity (continued)

The Company has not recorded compensation expense for stock options granted. The Cossvans
computed the pro forma disclosures required under SFAS 123 for stock options gramted usdng the B
Scholes option-pricing model. The assumptions are as follows:

Yeur Eadad [ecomser 3,

1999

Risk free interest rate ... ....... .o i 343%
Expected dividend yield .............. ... . oot o
Expected lives (inyears) ....... ... .o, 3.2 yewrs
Expected volatility. . .......o i e 0%
Weighted average remaining contractual life of options

outstanding. .. ... ... e oo 5.8 yoars
Weighted average fair value at grant date ........ e $504

The pro forma effects of applying SFAS 123 are as follows for the years ended Decsmber 3, 1995, |
and 1997

Year Exded Ducomber §

Net earnings (loss):
As reported
Pro forma

..............................................

.................................................

Net earnings (loss) per common share:
As reported:

BasiC . L e

Diluted ... ..o e e

Pro forma:

T 1 DM S 45 %: 13

of trashed

the input of highly subjective assumptions, including expected stock prive velutiiity, Beoau
employee stock options have characteristics significantly different from those of traded opt
changes in subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair value sstinute, i
opinion, the existing models to not necessarily provide a reliable single measure of the faf
employee stock options.

vagEnienl s

abie of iz

In July, 1997, the Board of Directors amended the 1993 1SO Plan and the 1998 NSO Plag
the Compensation Committee may amend certain outstanding options with an exercise o
current market price in order to modify the exercise price to the current market i

August 11, 1997, the Compensation Committee re-priced the exercise prics tw $7.2
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T-NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEM 5 e (Continned}

(7) Segment Information

Statement of Financia! Accounting Standards No. 121, Disclosures Abo
Related Information, {“SFAS 131") establishes standards for the way
about operating segments in annual financial statements. SFAS 13 abo estab
about products and services. geographic areas and major customers.

o

The Company has three reportable segments; the Torroctions [hvisioms. th
Internet Services Division. The Company cvaluates performunce hased on swg
taxes. Additional measures include operating income, depreciation apd ¥
There are no intersegment sales. The Company's reportable segmants &% 3
different products and services. They are managed separately because
technology and marketing strategies. The accounting policies of the teporta
described in the summary of significant accounting policies. Segmant info

%

Fadwabts 13

Revenue from external customers:
Corrections Division .. ..oevvrer i
SpeakEZ DIvision ... .ovvoeierer e
Internet Services Division ... . oo )

Operating income (loss):
Corrections DIVISION ... oot iovine i
SpeakEZ Division ... oo.onvvnniien e e
Internet Services Division .. ... v

Depreciation and amortization
Corrections Division . ......ovevvvinn s e
SpeakEZ Division ... . ..vveiii e
Internet Services Division .........

Interest and other income {expense)
Corrections Division ... ..o
SpeakEZ Division . ... vees
Internet Services Division ......... ...

Segment earnings (loss) before tax:
Cormections DivISIOn .. .. eer e o eiaarrmi i
SpeakEZ Division . .......ocoooeeen
Internet Services Division . ..oocv i

Segment earnings (loss) hefore tax:
Revenue from external customers
Operating income (10S8) . ooovenii
Depreciation and amortization. . .....coov o
Interest and other (incomej expense, nel .. ovviiavr oo
Segment carnings (loss) hefore taX o vie i



T-NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

{7) Segment Information — (continued)
Decembar 31, -
1599 19
{amounts fn thowsapdsl

Segment assets:
Corrections Division.. ... .. e e e . 566,943 § 80
SpeakEZ Division ..., ............ ... 3,599 .
Internet Services Division........... . e — -

Substantially all of the Company's reportable segment revenue is derived within the United :
Revenue as a percentage of total revenue attributable to significant customers for the vears seded
December 31, 1999, 1998 and 1997 is as follows:

ATET oo e e 13% 6%
Bell Atlantic ... . o e . g td
SBC Communications ..................... e e, 1 12

There was no intersegment revenue for the years ended December 3L, 1999, 1998 and 1997, Lissll
amounts to arrive at net earnings (loss) included income tax expense (benzfity of $¢1, 112,000, $108.4%
$1,039,000 for the years ended December 31, 1999, 1998 and 1997, respectively. Congalidited i«
included eliminations of approximately $12,976,000 and $11,084,000 as of Decerber 31, 1999 gpd
respectively, Eliminations consist of intercompany receivables in the Corrections Disiston and Intereompiny
payables in the SpeakEZ Division related solely to intercompany barrowing of the SpeakB? Division.

(8} Income Taxes

Income tax expense for the years ended December 31, 1999, 1998 and 1997 is ax Follows {(amounts in
thousands):

1999 1 s
Current;
Federal ... ... O cerves LT 5158 % gne
State ... e (s 38 3
Total ... e L ELisBY 7y bt
Deferred:
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T-NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO COMSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

{8) Income Taxes (continued)

Income taxes differ from the expected statutory incorne tax benefit, by applying the US fed
tax rate of 34% to pretax carnings for the years ended December 31, 1999, 1998 and 1997 due 1

1999 1095 you
Expected statutory income tax (benefit) expense ............. § (3,864
Amounts not deductible for income tax ....... ..ol 6499
State taxes, net of federal benefit........... .. ... it (Y773
Change in valuation allowance . ..........coovivnon, e 2,363
1011 1T UG Ot 1632
Total income tax expense (benefit) ... ..o i it 5 (110

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferrad ineams

assets and deferred income tax liabilities as of December 31, 1999 and 1998 ary prosented below:

'{amm,mt i ﬂm

Deferred income tax assets:

Net operating loss carryforwards ...........cooiiiiieiiiieciiiveeoo.. 8356
Allowance for doubtful accounts ........covoviaiii i, N 1488
110175 UG G D &40
Total gross deferred income tax assets .................. § 72t
Less valuation allowance . ... .. overerereneaioneenanniniineseeesen. (3700
2
Y

Deferred income tax liabilities:

Intangible assets, due to difference in book/tax basis .. ... e
Property and equipment, principally due to differences in depreciation. .

Other assets, due to differences in book/tax basis........ e
Total gross deferred tax labilities ......... . oot e

At December 31, 1999, the Company had net operating loas carryforwards for tax puiposes ;xyg?agmmm
approximately $17.4 million which, if not utilized to reduce taxable income in future periods, pipire ab wnne
dates through the year 2010. Approximately $1.3 million of the net operating loss « 'Amfmw;ud& Hee i
certain rules limiting their annual usage. The Company believes these annyol § v
affect the Company’s ability to use substantially ail of its net operating loss x.am*iarwmﬂa for income L
purposes.

A valuation allowance is provided when it is more likely than not that seme portion of the entire
deferred tax asset will not be realized. The Company has offset a portion of its deflerred tax msgets
i valuation allowance. The valuation allowance will be adjusted in the future based on the Company
; taxable income.

The exercise of stock options, which have been granted under the Company’s PR WNEO st
plan gives rise to compensation which is included in the taxable income of the appticable eptivn hold
deductible by the Company for federal and state income tax purposes. The income tax benefit nagocis
the exercise of the NSO options is recorded as an adjustment to additional paid-in capital when rea

it
&
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T-NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — {Continued}

{9) Commitments and contingencies

agreements for the years ended December 31, 1999, 1998 and 1997 was approximately $1,054,000, §930.
and $629,000, respectively. Future minimum lease payments under these lease agreements for sach of the n
five years are summarized as follows (amounts in thousands):

&

The Company leases office space under operating lease agreements. Rent axpense under opert

Year ending December 31:

2000 ....... . e e s
2000 ............ e e e e
2002 ... e e R
2003 ...... .

The Company is involved in various legal proceedings of a nature considered normal to its Busiz
the Company’s policy to accrue amounts related to these legal matters if it is probable that a nbility
incurred an amount that is reasonable estimable. In the opinion of management, all matiers are o
nature as would not have a material affect on the Company's financial position, resuits of operationg gnd ¢
flows of the Company if resolved unfavorably.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON SCHEDULE

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
T-NETIX, Inc.:

Under the date of March 21, 2000, we reported on the consolidated halance sheets of TNETIX, I
subsidiaries as of December 31, 1999 and 1998, and the related comsolidated syt

shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for eack of the vears in the three-yeas period ended D
In connection with our audits of the aforementioned consolidated finznzial statemems
related consolidated financial statement Schedule 11, This financial statement sehedule s thy
the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on this Snanciz! s
based on our audits.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statement schedule, when cotsidared in et iy 4

consolidated financial statements taken as whole, presents fairly, in all material respact
forth therein.

KPMG LLP

Dienver, Colorado
March 21, 2000
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SCHEDULE 11

T-NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
Years Ended December 31, 1999, 1998 and 1497

(Amounts in Thousanrds)

Balance st  Chargud to Balance
* Beginning Costs and Deductions/ st Epd
of Period Expenses Write-offs of Petiod
Year Ended December 31, 1997:
Allewance for doubtful accounts ... ..ot $ 989 $3,785 $(3.821) 5 943
Yeur Ended December 31, 1998:
Allowance for doubtful accounts ........ ... it $ 953 54,930 $(3.887) 51.99¢
Year Ended December 31, 1999:
Allowance for doubtful accounts ........ ...t $1,996 $4,981 $(3,388) 33389
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UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, DC 20549

Form 10-Q

&  QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

OR

{3 TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the Quarter Ended September 30, 2000

Commission File Number 0-25016

T-NETIX, Inc.

(Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in Its Charter)

Colorado 84-1037352
(State of Other Jursdiction (LR.S.- Employer
of Incorporation) . Identification No.)
67 Inverness Drive East
Englewood, Colorado 80112
{Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

Registrant's Telephone Number, Including Area Code: (303) 790-9111

Indicate by check ¥ whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to filed by Section 13 or
13(d) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period
that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for
the past 90 days. Yes®@ NoO

Indicate the number of shares outstanding of each of the issuer’s classes of common stock, as of the Iatest
practical date.

.-

Class Outstanding at Movember %, 2000

Comrnon Stock, $.01 stated value 12,978,242
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PART I

Item 1. Fimancial Statements

INDEX TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Londcnscd Consolidated Balance Sheets as of September 30, 2000 and December 31, 1999

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Three Months Ended bcptcmbm 30, “G(}{}
and 1999, and the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2000 and 1999 (Unaudited) . .

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Nine Months Ended Scptcmbu ?G, 2000
and 1999 (Unaudited) ... i e v i i

Motes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)
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T-NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(Unaudited)
September 30, Deceraber 31,
2000 1999
(Amouats in Thousands)
ASSETS
3 14 3 118
18,583 16,439
1,936 1,038
192 710
‘ Totat current assets .. ..., .. e, 20,725 18,325
Proparty and equipment, net ... oo 36,552 33,858
Candwidll, et o 5,860 6,401
Dalorred v asset ..o o 2,247 2,297
tntangible and other assets, net ... .. 8,460 9,252
Total assets . ..o $ 73,844 $ 70,133
LIABILITIES, REDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK
AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Ligbilities:
Agcounts payable ..o $ 10,597 § 13,187
Aderued Habilities ... o 6,072 5,924
Current portion of long term debt . ... 32,209 7,366
Total current Habilities .. ........... oo 48,878 26,477
Longeternm debl ..o o 43 21,555
Total labilities . ... ... 48,921 48,032
Berles A redeemable convertible preferred stock, $1,000 per share, stated
vithug, 3,750 shares authorized; issued and outstanding at September 30,
2000; liquidation preference of $3,875,000 at September 30, 2000 . ... ... .. 2,357 -
Stockholders’ equity;
Cenmon stock, $.01 stated value, 70,000,000 shares authorized; 12,733,084
wnd 12,699,400 shares issued and outstanding at September 30, 2000 and ) 7
December 31, 1999, respectively .. ... . 127 127
Additional paid-in capital ... ... L 37,052 35,791
Acmmalated defieit. .o oo L (14,613) (13,817)
Total stockholders’ equity .. ........ ... ... . .. . . 22,566 22,101
Cosmmdtments and contingencies
Total Habilities, redeemable convertible preferred stock
and stackbolders” equity .. ... oo $ 73,844 § 70,133

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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T-NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(Upaudited)
Three Months Ended Mine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2000 1999 2000 1999
(Asnounts in Thousands, Except
Per Share Amousnis)
Revenue:
TelecommuniCations SEIVICES .\ vve s nns $14615 § 9,761  $36,693 § 29631
Direct call provisioning ..........oooiiiiiiii 6,811 6811 21,303 20,334
THTEINEL SEIVICES « o v v vt et et et an e s 7,367 — 19,928 —
Equipment sales and other ..o 494 190 1,701 2,318
Total TEVERUE . ..o vt vr e s 29,287 16,762 79,623 52,283
Expenses:
Operating costs:
Telecommunications S€rviCes .. ..ovvv v inennin s 5,405 4,509 15,265 13V
Direct call provisioning . ........ i 6,050 6,281 19.318 18,820
FOEIMEL SEIVICES « v vt e v iv e cren e ian ey 5,953 — 16,602 ——
Cost of equipment sold and other .................... 105 56 635 934
Total operating COStS .....vvieivaiee e 17,513 10,846 51,840 32,931
Selling, general and administrative ............. ... 5,144 3,440 13,:464 9907
Research and development .. ..o 1,236 1,100 3,980 3,716
Impairment of telecommunication assets ................ — 4,632 e 1,632
Depreciation and amortization ............ oo 3,106 2,947 9273 LG1R
Total expenses ..... e 26,999 22965 78,557 59,804
Operating income (1088) . ...ovovvvinr e 2,288 (6,203) 1,068 {1.52L)
Merger (ransaction eXPEnSes . ... ovvnvvnt vttt — —_ —— (1,017}
Interest and other EXpense, NEL .......o.vvvurenerannaen.. {734) (479)  (1,7603 {1,595}
Income (loss) before income taxes .................oovt. 1,554 (6,682) (692)  (10,133)
Income tax {expense) benefit. ... .. ... ...t — (103) 1,117
Wet ineome (JOSS) v viiir e i 1,554 (6,682) (7935) {9,016)
Accretion of discount on redeemable convertible
preferred StOCK . ..ot (515) o (943) —
Net income (loss) applicable to common stockholders. .. ... $ 1,039 $(6,682) S$(1.740) § (9,016}
Basic net income (loss) per common share ................ $ 008 § (0.53) S (014 § (0.72)
Diluted net income (loss) per common share .............. $ 008 $ (0.53) S (0.14) §_(072)
Shares used in computing basic net income (loss)
© o per common Share ... ...l 12,733 12,699 12,761 12,448
Shares used in computing diluted net income (loss)
PEr COMMON ShATE .. ..\ vv e e 13,025 12,699 12,761 12,448

-
See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.



T-NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

{Unaudiied)
Nine Months Eaded
September 10,
2000 1999
(Amounts in Thousands)
Cash fows from operating activities:
DIt 085 . $ (7951 § (9,016
Adjustimients to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization ............... ..o RN 9,273 §,618
Impairment 1oss ... ..o — 4,632
Deferred income tax expense (benefit) ......................... ... ... .. 50 {1,338)
Grtin on sale of property and equipment . ........oovii i (324) {108)
Aceretion of discount on subordinated note payable .............. . ... .. .. 40 s
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Acocounts receivable, net .. ... L , (2,124) 1,253
Prepaid expenses ... (898) (312)
Inventories ... ... e 518 e
Intangibles and other assets ............ ... ... ... ... ... ... ... {410) (186}
Accounts payable ... L 2,590} 4,349
Accrued Habilities ... . o 142 L
Cash provided by operating activities ......................... .. .. .. 2,882 7,760
Cash used in investing activities:
Purchase of property and equipment . .................. . 0 (10,178) (10080
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment . ......................... 350 e
Other investing activities. ............. ... ... i (23} {803}
Cash used in investing activities..................... ... ... ... ... .. {9,851y (10,8833
Cash flows from financing activities:
Net proceeds from (payments on) line of credit ............................ (69} 5877
Proceeds from debt .......... . o 3,750 25,000
Payments of debt .. ... .. (350) {27,798
Proceeds from issuance of redeemable convertible preferred stock, net ......... 3,459 -
Common stock issued for cash under stock option plans ................ .. .. 75 257
Cash provided by financing activities. .. ................ ... ... .. ... . 5.865 3,344
Net incredse (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ..................... .. .. {104) 221
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period ....................... ... 118 678
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period . ... $ 14 3 399
Cash paid Far interest . ...t oe e $ 1535 § 1639
Cashy paid for InCOme TAXES. ... ... oottt § 103§ 113

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.

..




T-NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO COMDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unaudited)

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Unaudited Financial Statements

The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements refiect all adjostments. which, is
opinion of management, are necessary to reflect a fair presentation of the financial posifion and s
operations of T-NETIX, Inc. and subsidiaries (the Company) for the intedim periosds Bresent
adjustments, in the opinion of management, are of a normal and recurring natore. Some sdiustimen
estimates, which may require revision in subsequent interim periods or at year-end. The fnancial
have been presented in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Refer to n
consolidated financial statements, which appear ia the 1999 Annual Report vn Form 10-K for the Company's
accounting policies, which are pertinent to these statements.

Basis of Presentation

On June 14, 1999, the Company completed a merger with Gateway Technologies, Ine. {“Cae
privately held provider of inmate calling services. As a result of the merger, Gateway becarie z whe t
subsidiary of the Company. Prior to the merger, the Company changed its yearend from July 31t
December 31. Gateway’s year-end was December 31.

2

The merger was accounted for as a pooling of interests. As a result, the Company’s Hauncial
have been restated to combine Gateway's financial statements as if the mer var nd ocourred at the be
of the earliest period presented. Information concerning common stoek and per shire data hus boen restated
on an equivalent share basis.

Ligquidity

The Company recorded net income from operations of $1.6 million in the three months sad & net Yoss of
$795,000 for the nine months ended September 30, 2000. The working capital deficit as of Septembe
was $28.1 million. In July 2000, the Company and its lenders amended the Company's aredit sy
revise certain financial covenants and extended the maturity date until Apel 30, 2001, and 8s 3 resuls the dob
with the bank has been classified as a current liability.

The Company has taken steps to increase cash flow from operations, including rencgotiating
pricing and cost control measures, in order to carry out the remainder of its fiscal 2000 Husiness 5
changes have allowed the company to generate net income for the three maonths ended September
decrease in cash flows from operations for the nine months ended Septeraber 30, 2000 was primas
of higher levels of trade receivables and a reduction in trade payables. The Company wiil sequire
financing to fund operations and to repay or refinance existing debt as it becomes due. I the Company
able to obtain financing on terms accepiable to the Company it may have o ourtail ity apesntions,

Earnings (Loss) Per Common Share

wp

Earnings (loss) per common share is presented in accordance with the provistons of Statemenr of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 128, Earnings Per Shars (SFAS 128). Basic e tningy par shure exeludag
the impact of potentially dilutive securities and is computed by dividing income or loss available to warses
shareholders by the weighted average number of common sharcs outstanding duting the pet i

carnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could cccur if securities or other contr
common stock were exercised or converted into common stock. Far the thrae meanths ended Beptem
2000 diluted common and common equivalent shares cutstanding includes D500 of cormmon
equivalents, consisting of stock options and warrants and redeemable consertible proferred stosk, dat
under the treasury stock method. There is no difference between basic and diluted net fos !

ool




T-NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

{1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — (Continued)

potentially dilutive securities from the conversion of redeemable convertible preferred stock and the excreises
of options and warrants are anti-dilutive for the nine months ended September 30, 2000 and the three and fine
months ended September 30, 1999. The calculations of diluted net loss per common share for the nine months
ended September 30, 2000 and the three and nine months ended September 30, 1999, do not include 359,000,
355,000 and 400,000, respectively, of, potentially dilutive securities, including common stock options amd
warrants and redeemable convertible preferred stock.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In March 2000, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB") issued interpretation Neo. 44
“Accounting for Certain Transactions involving Stock Compensation — an interpretation of APB Qpiaton
MNo. 25 ("FIN 44"). This interpretation provides guidancs on the accounting for certain stock option
transactions and subsequent amendments to stock option transactions. FIN 44 {s effective July 1, 2000, But
certain provisions cover specific events that occur after either December 15, 1998 ar January 12, 2000, The
adoption of FIN 44 did not have a material effect on the financial position or results of aperations of the
company.

In December 1999, the SEC released Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB") No 10}, “Revenue
Recognition in Financial Statements,” which provides guidance on the recognition, presentation, and
disclesure of revenue in financial statements filed with the SEC. Subscquently, the SEC delayed the
implementation date of SAB 101 for the Company until the quarter ended December 31, 2000. The Company
does not expect the adoption of SAB 10! to have a material impact on its financial position or results of
operations.

In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 133, (SFAS 133), “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” ay
amended by SFAS No. 137. SFAS 137 defers the effective date of SFAS (33 to all fiscal guarters of all fiscul
years beginning after June 15, 2000. SFAS 133 establishes accounting and reporting standuards for derfeative
instruments, including certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts (collectively referred o us
derivatives), and for hedging activities. SFAS 133 requires companies to recognize all derivatives ag either
assets or liabilities, with the instruments measured at fair value. The accounting for changes in fulr value, guing
or losses, depends on the intended use of the derivative and its resulting designation. The Company decs not
expect the adoption of SFAS 133 to have a material impact on its financial position or results of eperations.

Reclassification

Certain amounts in the 1999 financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the 2000
presentation.,




]

T-NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIBIARIES
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ~ (Continued}

{2) Balance Sheet Components

Accounts receivable consist of the following:

September 34, Pheeembue 3%,
2009 1oy

(Amounts In Thousanda)

Accounts receivable, net: .
Trade accounts receivable . . ... ... oo 514,353
Direct call provisioning receivable ............................ 5,168
Other receivables .. ..ot i 443
12,964
.................. {1,383y
$18.383

Bad debt expense was $1.3 million and $1.4 million for the three months ended September 30, 2000 qn
1999, respectively, and $3.9 million and $4.3 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2000 and 1903,

respectively.
Property and equipment consists of the following:

September 30,  Devaprber M,
1000 jeo -

] “{Amounts in Thossande)
Property and equipment, net:

Telecommunications equipment . ......... oot .n... . 361754
Construction in progress .«................ R 6,702
Office equipment .. ..o 11,733
80,189
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization. ... .. ... (43,6373
. $ 16,552

Intangible and other assets consist of the following:

September 30,  December 33,
2000 '

o

(Amounts 1 Thoussnls:
Intangible and other assets, net:

Patent license rights . ...... ... § 3,323
Purchased technology assets. . ........... .. o ity 2,487
Capitalized software development costs ....................... 663
Acquired software technologies ............ ... .. ... .. ..... 1,981
Patent defense and application costs .......................... 2,590
Deposits and long-terin prepayments. ........... ... ... ..o, 1,724
Other . 1210
14,020
Less: Accumulated amortization .............. ... ... ....... " (5,560




T-NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — {Continued}

(2) Balance Sheet Components — (Continued)

Accrued liabilities consist of the following:

September 30,  Dacewber 33,
2000 1395

{Amounts In T‘}mmﬁds},

Acemed liabilities:

Deferred revenue and customer advances...................... 51,633
Compensation related ........... ... ... . .. ... ... 1,402
Other. . 3017
86,072

(3} Debt

Debt consists of the following:
September 3., Decsmber 31,
2000 1500

{Amounts i Thonswnds)

Debt: .
Bank lines of credit .. ... ... £28.392 SR 441
Subordinated note payable ............ ... ... ... ... . ... ... 3750 —
Other. ..o 110

32252
Less current portion. ........... ... L
Non current portion..............cooviron i, § 43

Bank Line of Credit

In September 1999, the Company entered into a Senior Secured Revolving Credit Facility (the “Crodi
Facility”) with its commercial bank. The Credit Facility provides for maximum credit of $49 miltion
to limitations based on financial covenant calculations. The Credit Facility is comprised of 7 one monti
LIBOR component of $23.5 million at an interest rate of LIBOR plus .73% at September 30, 2000: an
$4.9 million at the Bank’s prime rate, 9.5% at September 30, plus 0.5%. As of September 30, 2000, the fnterest
rates on borrowings under the bank Credit Facility ranged from 9.4% to 10.0%. The Company also pays o fee
of 0.3% per annum on the unused portion of the line of credit.

The Credit Facility is collateralized by substantially all of the assets of the Company. Under the tenmns of
the Credit Facility, the Company is required to maintain certain financial ratios and other financinl covenzats.
These ratios include a debt to a four quarter rolling earnings before interest. taxes wnd depreciation and
amortization (EBITDA.) ratio, a ratio of fixed charges (interest and debt paymentsy o EBITDA, and
minimum quarterly EBITDA. The agreement also prohibits the Company from incurring additional
indebtedness.

In July 2000, the Company and its lenders amended its credit agreement to provide for revised financial
covenants and extended the maturity date until April 30, 2001 and 35 a result the debt with the bank hay begn
classified as a current liability. The Company raised $7.5 million of 2dditional financing i Aprl 2000, The et
proceeds were used to reduce the outstanding balance on the credit facility. As of September 30, 260, the
Company is in compliance with all terms of the amended agreement with the lenders. The maximum
of credit under the credit facility available to the Company is dependent upon the Company's

performance. Based on the financial covenants, the Company’s maximum available bormvwings at Septome
ber 30, 2000 were $34.3 million.



T-NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMES

(3) Debt — (Continued)
Subordinated Note Payable

&

The Company issued a subordinated note payable of 3375 millien, duw s
significant shareholder of the Company. The note bears interest ar prime rate plus
(10.5% at September 30, 2000) which is payable every six months beginning in Qotet
received warrants to purchase 25,000 shares of common stogk at an sxersise o
period of five years. The estimated fair value of the steck purc :
Scholes model, has been recorded as deferred financing fees and iz be

(4) Stockholders Equity

In April 2000, the company issued 3,750 shares of series A non-voting redecrnab
stock and five-year stock purchase warrants to acquire 340909 comntos
$3.5 million. The company accounted for the transaction in accordance with
Convertible Securities with Beneficial Conversion Features or Contingentl

the beneficial conversion. The Company is accreting the resulting discount on the p
{loss) applicable to common stockholders over the six-month period beginaing A
preferred stock does not bear any dividends.

In the event of any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company, morge:
control or a sale of substantially all of the Company's asscts, the holders of the
preferred stock are entitled to receive 2 liquidation preference of 8% per snmuns. B
distribution are insufficient to cover the liquidation preference. then the entirg 3
Company legally available for distribution arc te be disiributed mmD{} aemong the holdery o
convertible preferred stock.

The preferred stock is convertible by the holder hvur.mmf an Quiober 17, 2
convertible preferred stock is convertible into a number of common share 3
of (a) the stated value of the preferred stock plus (b) a premives amount
value multiplied by 8% annualized for the peried outstanding, by the Conversi
issuable upon any conversion plus any other shares held by the holders cannot szees tf; 4

shares of the Company’s common stock.

The Conversion Price is the lesser of the Variahle Conversion Price and %hfi' ;
Variable Conversion Price is defined as the average closing bid prices for
during the twenty-two consecutive trading day period ending one tradicg :
The Fixed Conversion Price was initially set at $6.05. In aceordance with the ardghual agreem
Conversion Price was re-set to $4.1388 as of August 17, 2000.

Company's commen stock is less than or equal to $4.00 for 18 copsecutive dave. The optio

available to the Company as long as (i) all of the shares of commuon stock iss
Series A preferred stock are then authorized and reserved for issuance, regist “*mi e
by the Company and such shares are eligible to trade on Nasdag and (it} no Manduts
Trading Market Redemption event has occurred and is continuing. The amouni of
optional redemption is the greater of (i) 120% of the liquidation preference or £ii)
value is the product of (a) the number of shares of common stoek issuable upon
preferred stock, as calculated using the conversion price neted above, sudtiphisd
price of the common stock during the period from the daje the notize of redemption »
one day prior to the redemption date.

10



T-NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continucd}

(4) Stockhelders Equity — (Continued)

[f the Company provides notice at the beginning of a month in which conversion is requested. it
the option to redeem any preferred shares submitted for conversion by the holders in cash rather tham &

issuing shares of common stock. The price used in the redemption shall be the closing price of the com
LD P O it AR TiE GRRHEERIRD QAU &8 98 O (08 SRR e 0 e 2 aseretsy

ctock cm Lhe date of conversian. The conversmn date IS get bv the halder upan the L'mt us afl coneasdian.

wmounts duz: in cash to the holdecs must be paid within two trading davs cé the conversion.

In the event the Company publicly announces its intention to consummate 2 ITMAIOE Irans

the sale. converance or disposition of all or substantially all of the asscts of she o =
the Tempany 5f o mmnsacHon or scrics of A ISR Y E Chi IR AT S0 or the v

[umnumt ig 7“3130007 [ on )t}:a aonaa}/&?at}oa I GLAO0E OF o/bat}mmnaac uam}J;unS;Ju y; !« (".,mu wsd]
et e Wi L ! ! <. ¢! L; £

T s < \- aaeew  ThATNS e e TR no—‘tx“l . e T

Company is dxsposcd af. or tThe consolidation. Merger or orther bus ss cormbinnaiiom
The Company i oot the survivor, at the optlon of the holders of preferrsd sharms. (S
required 1o Sissributao 1"0% of tlhc calaulared lHiquidatien preference T holcdars o sihe
the troasactien results in the common stock of the Company being changed ims

corporation, the holders of the preferred shares can elect to receive such securities or asses

the preferred shares would have been entitled to receive had the holder converted the preferr wd

e ) 1 B0 0053 13 AN e S 5]

immediately prior to the transaction. Alternatively, upon the \\apgemt\g o‘i one of \'mw:: muycu

—mTs. the (Company can cleet 1o redesm the preforT=d sharos froon tha holdeos
Hericiation prefercncs. The rmajor ifransaciion redormprion srmownt will b .=q\_=;x 2o TRe _c.—::;_:c_—

transacrion percentage, which is (A) 165% in the case of a major transaction uﬂdsummaxsd in ;hr’: ""‘TOC =2

April 17, 2001, (B) 200% in the case of a major transaction consummated on ar altar Aprit
11 1t 11 t [L I} 1 1 1 ¢ t [} 1 t 3 ] ,
m:.lu:ahcd by the sum of (a) the stated value of the shares to be redecmed. pius (B) as oomoe

§% per annum of the stated value for the period outstanding, plus (c) any conversion default p
e egumivalent value of tThe shores 1o be redocmmaed. The cguivalen: wmlae T ST
of shoares of common stock issuable upon conversion of the preferrsa stock umlx‘x-u.. the dares o

rransaction as the trading days, and the conversion price calcuaums nated abave, plmd i

s C o AN t oottt L t [ S Y
- . s : ¥

HE ?!HC &

five-year >.tock purchase warrant exercisable for 340,909 sha:as at $8.60 per >hmm of t’m_ Coxtins
stock, The Company allocated the fair value of the warrants ($1.1 million) to addisional pai §

recognized a discount on the preferred shares issued. The Company also isswed wa

50,000 shares of common stock to the broker on the sale of preferred stack at un exsreise grics «
share. The stock purchase warrants were valued at fair value (163 800Y using the Hivcb Qebobew

L PR
ekt txrck
are being amortized as accretion of discount on preferred stock over ihe tarm of theo pr:":rrc:a REeehtnd Y

(§) Commitments and Continpancies

Future minimum lease payments under operating leases for the next five years tetl approgs
e
1.5 million.

(6) Segment Information

The Company has three reportable segments; the Corrections Divisions, the SpeakEZ Divisior, ;‘mfi, i
Internet Services Division. The Company evaluates performance based on carnings (loss) befors i
taxes. Additional measures include operating income, depreciation and amortization, wttwst <:y
There are no intersegment sales. The Company's reportable segments are specific business units
different products and services. They are managed scparately bf‘cau? cach business reguirsy <H;
technology and marketing strategies. The accounting policies of the reportable segments iwe Ihe same as &

!
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(6) Segment Information — {Continued)

months ended September 30, 2000 and 1999 is as fallows:

Theee Months Ended
September 3,

W0 i
{Amiants i T

REVENUE FROM EXTERNAL CUSTOMERS:

Corrections Division. . ....... ... iiiiin... $21910  $16.733
SpeakEZ Division ......coiviiiiiiinna. .. 10 %
Internet Services Division..................... 7,367 e
329,287
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS):
Corrections Division. ...........oooiiiin ... s L34
SpeakEZ Division .......ovvnriiniinannnn.. {440y
Internet Services Division . .................... i nm
S A.y.l.

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION:

Corrections Division. ......oooeee it oo 5 1901
SpeakEZ Division ...........co. oL 205
Internet Services Division .. ...................

INTEREST AND OTHER EXPENSE, NET:
Corrections Division. .. ............. e
SpeakEZ Division ............ it
Internet Services Division . ...................,

SEGMENT EARNINGS (LOSS) BEFORE
INCOME TAXES:

Corrections Division. ........ociviinvnnn .. 3 BYY
SpeakEZ Division ............... ... .. {T5%
Internet Services Division .....................

SEGMENT ASSETS:
Corrections DIVISIORn .. ..ot

There was no intersegment revenue for the thres months ended S
Consolidated total assets included ecliminations of approximately $129
September 30, 2000 and December 31, 1999, respectively. Eliminations consist
the Corrections Division and intercompany payables in the SpeakBZ Division related solalv b Infepgs
borrowing of the SpeakEZ Division.

12

A



Item 2. Managemeny’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resuits of Dipertings

For a comprehensive understanding of our financial condition and performance, this disey
considered in the context of the condensed censolidated financial staternents and ESeas
other information contained herein.

The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 provides a “safe harbos™ fo
statements. Certain information contained in this Management's Discussion and A
Condition and Resulits of Operations and elsewhere in this Form 10-03 nciudes o
Important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from thase
statements include, but are not limited to, those listed under the caption “Risk Fasre
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1999, which may affect the potential teckn
of existing systems, the renewal of existing site specific Corrections and Interner
contracts, the ability to retain the base of current site specific customer comtrast
contractual performance requirements, the continued relationship with esisting cus
new contracts for our products and services, including Lock & Track™, Conta
Division, the ability of our existing customers, including AT&T, to maintain theit markes sf
calling market, our ability to penetrate the market for jail management systems and to s
voice verification and fraud prevention technology, the effect of economic conditions, the off
including the Telecommunications Act of 1996 that could affect cur sales ar pricing, the fmpret ¢
products and pricing particularly in the our Corrections Division, our contifuing bility 1
and software products, commercialization and technological difficulties, manufactarisg o
supply constraints or difficulties, actual purchases by current and DIOSpELtive customess s
expected agreements, and the results of financing efforts, along with the other ks d

Overview

Acquisition of Gateway Technologies, Inc.

On June 14, 1999, we completed our merger with Gateway Technolog
exchanging 3,672,234 shares of our common stock for all of the comman stack o
Gateway was exchanged for 5.0375 shares of our common stock. In addition. outs
options were converted at the same exchange rate into options to purchase
our common stock.

The merger constituted a tax-free reorganization and has been accounted for as & seoahing
under Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 16. Accordingly, all prior periad inforny
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operatd
include the combined results of operations, financial position and cash fHows of T-NET
though Gateway had always been a part of T-NETIX

In addition, in connection with the merger transaction, T-NETIX ifssused 73 141 #f
to certain shareholders of Gateway in exchange for their terminating a royaity

royalty agreement related to automated call processing technolegy snd intellze :
assigned to Gateway by the royalty owners in exchange for royalty payments. The tern
owners' interests resulted in the acquisition of an intangible asset. The asset has been t
fair value, or $2,487,000. The fair value is based on the value of T-NETIN commen
1999 (date of the Merger Agreement), or $6.625, multiplied by the number of shares
termination of the royalty owners’ interests. The intangible asset has un estimated
remaining tzrm of the underlying patent.



Corrections Division

In the Corrections Division we derive revenue from thres
direct call provisioning and equipment sales. Each form of reveny
associated with such revenue. The Corrections Diviston acoous
total revenue for the three and nine months ended Sepramibser &
expenses, along with research and development and Jag.«: chiti
regardless of the revenue generated.

Telecommunications services revenue is primarily gensrated under
years in length. Pricing historically provided for transaction fees %
paid a prescribed fee for each call completed and additional §
inmates. The per-call charge is primarily for the provisioes
telecommunications service providers for their correctional fisd
into a contract amendment and a new price commitment with two 3
percentage of gross revenue earned by the customer, subject to
effort by us to have our pricing remain flexible and not by
Pursuant to the ctual and pendmg amendment, we also tecy

At

new pricing commitment with another of our customess tha?
telecommunications service provider customers include AT&T.
BellSouth, and Sprint.

I

As a direct inmate call provider, we buy “wholesale™ call serviges
services of third parties to bill the collect calls. We then enter in
facilities and generally pay to the correctional factlitise comanst
charged by us are consistent with the collect call rates charged
“ILEC” in the same service area and the predominant {ntes
originating from the inmate phones are collect calls, zuch !
revenues. The uncertainty of the creditworthiness of the bitfed past
industry-average uncollectible cost.

Equipment sales and other revenue includes the sules of snr §
The sales of the inmate calling system are gencrally made to ond

" Internet Services Division

In December 1999, we cntersd into a master servics apeeen
America, Inc. to provide interLATA Internct services to Owest ¢
December 1, 1999, calls for us to buy, resell and process Bifi
The contract with Qwest is for a minimum of sixteen months.

The Internet Services Division accounted for approxinie
three and nine months ended September 30, 2000, Our gross ;'

the three and nine months ended September 30, 2000, respece
negotiated base management fee and contract incentive pavme
primarily the costs for Internet bandwidth. There were no capital
services. The Company anticipates adding personne} o expand the servig

Division beyond the scope of the current contract,

Extension of the contract beyond the minimum 3
approval process in various states. In the event that Qwest reced
telecornmunications services during or after the initial siue
could be reduced significantly or eliminated.



Speaker Verificatian Division

In our SpeakEZ Division the marketing strategy has been directed a technology licensing strategy varsus
a direct customer strategy. A direct customer sales strategy markets a specifically developed software pradoct
to specific end user customers. The strategy is then to find other specific customers who have similay gperal
systems and market this product to these customers. In contrast, 2 technology licensing strategy focuses o &
larger scale customer who can integrate the SpeakEZ software product into its existing product line, This.
larger customer, such as a computer manufacturer, would then be responsible for the product integration and
ultimate delivery to the end user customer. In keeping with this strategy, the SpeakEZ Division entered into
an OEM Agreement to license its SpeakEZ technology to a major speech recognition company,

Even with the changes in marketing strategy, there can be no assurance that the products based ox the
3peakEZ technology will achieve the necessary market acceptance or becorng widely zdopied. The marke
speaker verification software has only recently begun to develop. As is typical in the case of a new a
¢volving market, demand and market acceptance for recently introduced products and services are subjoct 4
high level of uncertainty. Our voice print revenue has been minimal to date.

&

g

Results of Operations for the Three Months Ended September 30, 2000 Compared ta September 3

The following table sets forth certain statement of operations data as a percentage of total revenue for the
three months ended September 30, 2000 and 1999.

e

Revenue:
Telecommunications SEIVICES ... ... ... i i e ¥
Direct call provisioning.............. 5
Intermet ServiCes . ... i 25
Equipment sales and other. ...l 2
Total revenue . ............, e e 1)

Expenses:
OPErAtNG COBS . . o\ttt ittt et et e ettt vt e e e
Selling, general and administrative
Research and development
{mpairment of telecommunication assets
Depreciation and amortization

Operating income (1088) .. oot i e ceee
Interest and otherexpense . ...

Income (loss) before income taxes. . ..
Income tax (expense) benefit

Net Income (1088) ..\ oo vt ettt e e e e
A 1 1 . ihla e g o b
Accretion of discount on redeemable convertible preferred stock ... ............

Net income (loss) applicable to common stock ............... .

Total Revenue. Total revenue for the three months ended September 30, 2000 was $29.3 miton. an
increase of 75% over $16.8 million for the corresponding prior peried. This inerease was primarily stiributable

to the commencement of Internet services, as well as increases in telecommunications services tevesnue,

The 50% increase in telecommunications services revenue to $14.6 million in the three months ens
September 30, 2000, from $9.8 million for the corresponding prior period, was due pritnarily to an fnoreis
contract prices. We changed our pricing to two significant customers wherchy revenue is caleufated
pereentage of our customer’s gross revenue versus a transaction fee per call and increased the per-call
another customer. In addition we experienced an increase in revenue due to call volume inersases, primadd
due to the addition of new sites.

Yot
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Direct call provisioning revenue was $6.8 million for the three months oned
1999 respectively. There was no change in dircct provisioning reverme a3
the loss of other sites. The addition of sites is primarily 8 result of our bein @
arrangements for contracts directly with correctional institations. Conversely #s ¢
institutions expire, due to the competitive bidding pracess some sites, have besn

The Internet Services contract commenced in December 1995, Futre reven
base of subscribers :md'contract incemivc paymemq ‘[nt»mﬁ’t grﬂse miar‘fiﬁ for 1

Equipment sales and other revenue increased 10T i«
ber 30, 2000 from $190,000 in the corresponding prior pariod. m:h :
telecommunications service provider customer and are depenadent upor
customcr and the customer" success raie in 'm (r;rri’m*v in 'k z%‘r teg

expect significant equipment sales in th:. near fumrt.‘

Operating costs. Total operating costs were $17.3 million in
2000, an increase of 61% from $10.8 miilion in the corresponding pet

due to the commencement of Internet services as well as ineres

Operating costs of telecommunications servie
correctional facilities, including salaries and nmm ;w &
calling systems repair and maintenance experse. Ope 'z*m
costs associated with call verification procedures, primariiv
Operating costs associated with direct call provisioning e
long distance charges, commissions paid to corrsctionl fac
and billing charges. Internet Services expense consisis of
and other includes primarily the purchase price el oy
components were minimal. Voice print operating costs mvzmiu
cost of services which amounts are reflected as ether aperating ¢

s el SApenEes

The following table sets forth the operating o
corresponding revenue for the three months ended September 3,

Operating costs:
Telecommunications services .. ......... e e e ey
Direct call provisioning . . ... oot e
TRLEIMIET SEIVICES .« ot it e e cme e ee v e T
Cost of equipment sold and other

Operating osts associated with providing telecommuneatio
revenue was 37% for the three months cndfzd %'uamht‘ }€>, 2
prior period. The decrease was due :
telecommunications services operating cxpe,m::s WG ‘3‘* + z"‘z}‘xm
2000 and $4.5 millicn for the corresponding prive peried. The nvreasw
costs as a result of increased personnel and to o kesser exi
addition of contract labor personnel in the Mationai Service
contributed to cost increases. To a lesser extent, increuses i
10 the overall cost increase. With the addition of persosact st o
reduce ficld operations personnel costs in the near future.

Direct call provisioning costs as a percentage of app
for the three menths ended September 30, 2000 from

ih



because of improved collections cﬁ'orts.

The contract for Internet services commenced in December 19949, Future &
dependent upon the base of subscribers and additional contract incentive p—*—mtﬁmrs C@ﬂ,g of equ
and other increased in the three months ended September 30, 2000 and also 4 & ¢ 2
corresponding revenue from the corresponding prior primarily due ty the d;&nm i e rove

equipment sales.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. Selling, general and admini
$5.1 million for the three months ended September 30, 2000 compared 45 §34 n
prior period. Selling, general and administrative expenses associated with the {
$5.0 million for the three months ended September 30, 2000 compared to $3.3 b
prior period. The increase in the three months ended September 30, 204 was ;zz; :
salary and benefits for additional personnel and from raises for cxisting g‘x;**“g"

September 30, 2000 and $0.9 million in the corresponding prior period. The inemase w
increased personnel expenses. We anticipate research and development #xpenses to remialsn
remainder of the year.

Depreciation and Amortization Expenses. Depreciation and amortization ey
the three months ended September 30, 2000, an increase from $2.9 million for (H\.
The increase was due primarily to the depreciation associated with new
equipment purchased for internal operations.

Interest and Other Expense, Net. Interest and other expense, aat wig 57
ended September 30, 2000, an increase from $479,000 for the corraspanding w
income in the three months ended September 30, 2000 is & gain of approsimately
telecommunications equipment. Interest expense was $813,000 for the theee
2000, and $479,000 for the corresponding prior period. The incresse in ”tﬁiil ¥
the average amount of indebtedness outstanding and an increase in interey
increased primarily due to the increase in capital expenditures.




1o e i

Resulis of Operations for the Nine Manths Ended Sepr

The following table sets forth certain statement of ope
nine months ended September 30, 2000 and 199%.

Revenue:
Telecommunications services ............ e
Direct call provisioning .. ............. . e
Internet services ................... e
Equipment sales and other......... .. ... ...,

Yotal revenue .. ... ......... ... .... ...

Expenses:
Operating CostS .. ...\vur ot
Selling, general and administrative .. .. ... e
Research and development. .. .......... .. ... ... .
Impairment of telecommunication assets ... ... ...

Depreciation and amortization. . ........ ... .. ... ..

Operating income (loss).

Merger transaction expenses ..... ... ... e
Interest and other expense ... ... .. e
Loss before income taxes ... ... .. e
Income tax benefit . ......... R
Netloss .......... e .

Accretion of discount on re dﬂcmg e convertihle

Net loss applicable to common 3

Total Revenue. Total revenue for Qh«f’ wing
increase of 52% over §52.3 millfon for the cosr
to the commencement of Internet ser‘-'zt;:cs.,. as welf a
direct call provisioning revenue, offset in part by

The 24% increase in telecommunicutions servicey
Septeinber 30, 2000, from $29.6 million for the ¢
contract prices. In addition we axperienced an incre
to the addition of new sites.

Direct call provisioning revenus fncreased
2000, from $20.3 million in the carrasponding prie
new sites for which we are provisioning the loag di
successful in competitive bidding srrangements fo

The Intemnet Services contrac commenced §
upon the base of subscrbers and additioe

Equipment sales apd other revenue desre
September 30, 2000 from $2.3 million in the come
with one telecommunications servic ;wm by
this customer and the customer’s s
significantly all equipmient sales wes
the nine months ended September 3
of purchases by this customer.




Operating costs.  Total operating costs were 351.8 million in the nise months en
an increase of 58% from $32.9 million in the corresponding priar period. The tncreas
the commencement of Interet services as well as increases in telecommmug
provisioning expenses offset by a reduction in the cost of equipment sald

Operating costs of telecommunications services primardly consist of
correctional facilities, including salarjies and related personnel expenses, co
calling systems repair and maintenance expense. Operating costs of mi‘ewmm
costs associated with call verification procedures, primarily network expens
Operating costs associated with direct call provisioning include the co
long distance charges, commissions paid to correctional facifities, cests :
and billing charges. Internet Services operating cXpense Consists of purchage

The following table sets forth the operating costs and expenses for ¢
cor'espondmg revenue for the nine months ended Septentber 30, 200

Operating costs:
Telecommunications services
Direct call provisioning
Internet services

Operating costs associated with providing telecommunicutions sepe
revenue was 42% for the nine months ended September 30, 2000, a dex
prior period. The decrease was due to revenue increases i sxcess of ¢
services operating expenses were $13.3 million for the nine moml
$13.2 million for the corresponding prior period. The increase m 2000 i3
for a significant customer as part of a contract amendment and due @
increase included bonus costs associated with our line installation bewus
as of June 30, 2000. Also, the addition of new personnel in the Matisnat
support functions contributed to cost increases. To a lesser axtent, fues
repairs and maintenance contributed to the overall cost increase.

Direct call provisioning costs as a percentage of applicable reverus door
nine months ended September 30, 2000 from 93% in for the corresps
primarily due to a reduction in bad debt expense because of improved zollectis

The contract for Intemet services commenced in Decembeor 19
decreased in the nine months ended Sepiember 30, 2000 hm im:m;‘nw
revenue from the corresponding prior primarily due to the char
voice print sales.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. Selfing, gn:‘if;mi‘
$13.4 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2000 compared
prior period. Selling, general and administrative sxpenses associatsd wi
$13.1 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2060 compared i
prior period. The increase in the nine months ended September 30, 2000 was ¢
salary and benefits for additional personnel, from raises for existing persannel and
expenses increased due to travel, communications and professional fees due 1w the i
operations.

-

Research and Development Expenses. Research and dcvcismw*’ti Sz
nine months ended September 30, 2000 compared to $3.7 millien for the
and development expenses for the Corrections Division were §16 million in th
September 30, 2000 and $3.0 million in the corresponding prior pericd. The increnss
higher travel and consulting costs.
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Depreciation and Amortization Expenses. Depreciation and amortization cEpansy w
the nine months ended September 30, 2000, an increase fror $8.6 million for the coss
The increase was due primarily to the depreciation associated with mew site insta

Merger Transaction Expenses. These expenses were dircerly reluted to the we
amounted to approximately $1.0 million for the nine months esded September 30
expenses consisted primarily of fees for investment bankers, attorneys, accountynts,
other related charges.

Interest and Other Expense, Ner. Interest and other expense, net was $1.8 sl
ended September 30, 2000, an increase from $1.6 million for the corresponding peing g
income in the nine months ended September 30, 2000 is a gain of apﬁmﬂmatdy
telecommunications equipment. There was $59,000 of miscellaneous other income i the
September 30, 1999. Interest expense was $2.2 million for the nine months snded S
$1.7 million for the corresponding prior period. The increase in 2000 was *zttmbm,‘
average amount of indebtedness outstanding and an increase in intersst sutes,
increased primarily due to the increase in capital expenditures and bt

Liguidity and Capital Resources
Cash Flows

We incurred losses from operations for the nine months ended Sept
working capital deficit of $28.1 million at September 30, 2000. i Ju
agreement to provide for revised financial covenants. Additionally, we pused
financing in April 2000. The net proceeds were used to reduce iht’: Quts
We have taken steps to improve our cash flow from operations, i
cost control measures in order to carry out the remainder of ous
increases in our cash flow from operating income which will allas
current loan agreement. This credit facility is expested to prov
continuing operational needs through April 39, 2001.

fde

We have historically relied upon commercial botrowings, o
securities to fund our operations and capital needs. invc::{maz
property and equipment for site telecommunieations equipags ;
provided by operations decreased 63% to $2.9 millicn for the nine won
$7.8 million in the corresponding prior period primarily due to sedy
accounts receivable. The increase in the working capital defieis & <13
bank credit facility as a current liability. The cuzrent ity date of

£ 5w
ZATE FELT ¥

Purchases of property and equipment were $10.2 mithic
compared to $10.1 million for the corrcspmxdmxﬁ priee perie

equipment was primarily due to additional inmate cabling
systems.

Debt and Equiry

We have been funding our operations primarily [rom
using cash provided oy operations. Due to our capital raguirer im&u
Gateway, in September 1999, we entered into a Senior Secured Revals
with a commercial bank. The maximum available amount of crediz :
Company is dependent upon the Company’s fnancia meriusm
Company’s maximum borrowings at September 30, 2000 wess %
amended our credit agreement to revise certain fnancinl cuves H
and equity financing in April 2000. The net procesds of apprEly
outstanding balance on the Credit Facility.

[
o



We anticipate that our capital expenditures in 2000 will be consistent with 19%% based on our ¢
growth in installed systems at correctional facilities. We believe our Credit Facility and cush
operations will be sufficient in order for us to meet our anticipated cash needs for ar‘.:czmimi nes
of inmate call processing systems and upgrades of existing systems and to finance vur oper
the next 6 menths.

Itets 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure About Market Risk

We are exposed to interest rate risk as discussed below.

{nterest Rate Risk

We have current debt outstanding under the credit facility of $29.4 million st Septembes
credit facility bears interest at differing rates including, $23.5 million at LIBOR phis 2.7% % and the
balance at the prime rate, 9.5% at September 30, 2000, plus 0.5%. Interest on the LIBOR eute
ratc loans are payable monthly. Since the interest rates on the loans outstanding are varialie a
pericdically, we are exposed to interest rate risk. An increase in interest vates of 1% wouki §
anrual interest expense by approximately $280,000 based on the amount of Borrowings sutctand
line of credit at September 30, 2000.




PART I OTHER INFORMATY

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

From time to time we have been, and expect o continus
proceedings or suits in the normal course of our business.

Gateway recently won a dismissal of a case brought
New Mexico, styled Valdez v. State of New Mexico, ot al ﬁm s
Mexico, several political subdivisions of the State of Neow Mesic
service providers, including Gateway. The complaint includes s
plaintiffs’ class action consisting of all persons whe have bean biffed 1§
by an inmate confined in a jail, prison, detention center or
complaint alleges violations of New Mexico Unfair Praciices Ag
New Mexico Constitution, and also alleges unjust snrichmins,
constructive fraud and illegality of contracts, all in conr
telecommunications services. The case was never cq.mi 4% &
readiness to appeal the dismissal of the case, although t m h

mr

Similarly, T-Netix is likely to win dismissal of arother st
Washington for King County, styled Sandy J zxdri, & ‘"f
In that case, the complaint joined several inm
including T-NETIX. The complaint includes a re qucst i
consisting of all persons who have been billed for and
in a jail, prison, detention center or other Washing
the Washington Consumer Protection Act (WP,
Consumer Protection Act and common law to snjoin i
fails to state a valid claim under the WCPA and has s,m.
this infirmity. Regardless of the merits of the amended ol
adjudicate the matter and will refer the clate to the ’»-‘f RE
disposition.

Gateway is presently litigating an appeal frany » st
case Gus "“Skip"” Daleure, Jr. et al. vs. Commeomwes
defendants several states, political subdivisions of stutes
was filed contemporaneously with a request for centifivay
consisting of all persons who have received and ;nu“’ f
or other correctional institution for the provisios «
complaint sought declaratory and injunctive relie? and
violations of the Sherman Antitrust Act, the Robinsan
court held, on motions to dismiss; Kentucky did not have purs
or doing business in the state of Kentucky: that telephone
subject to the antitrust provisions of the Robinson-Puarg
under the Equal Protection Clause of the Fourteanih A
in support of its antitrust claim under Section i of the %
the plaintiff”s prayer for injunctive relief, despite thaze §
cross appeal in the Second Circoit Court of Appeats, &
will not be overturned it is possibic that it may be,
class of the providers will not sltimatsly be enterzd.

5

We believe the ultimate disposition of the forgeiag m
condition, liquidity, or results of opsrations.

Item 2. Changes in Securities and Use of Preceeds

None




Item 3. Defauits Upon Senior Securities

None.

ttem 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

None.

Item 5. Other Information

None.

Item 6. Exhibits and Reports on Form 8-K
{a) Exhibits

27 — Financial Data Schedule

(b) The Company filed a Form 8-K dated August 28, 2000 reporting the fallow

Item 5 on Form 8-K regarding resignation of chief excoutive officer and div
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, she Registrant has ¢
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly suthorized.

T-NETIX, INC.
{Registrant}

By fs/ THOMASE

Tiveos

Date November 13, 2000
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T-NETIX TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES, INC. ORIGINAL SHEET i
SOUTH DAKOTA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION TARIVE HO. I
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WITHIN THE STATE OF SOUTH DAXOTA

PROVIDED BY

T-NETIX TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES, INC.

Issued:

Issued by: Richard Cree, Presiden
1544 Valwood Parkway, 8
Carrollton, Texas ”JL‘E}{“




T-NETIX TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES, INC. ORIGINAL SHEET &

SOUTH DAKOTA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION TARIFF HO. 1

TITLE SHEET

SOUTH DAKOTA TELECOMMUNICATIONS TARIFF

This tariff contains the descriptions, regulations, and
rates applicable to the furnishing of service or facilities for
Telecommunications Services furnished by T-NETIX Telecomuunications
gervices, Inc. ("T-NETIX"), with principal offices at 1544 Valweood
Parkway, Suite 102, Carrollton, Texas 75006. This tariff applies

for services furnished within the State of South Dakota, Phsa
tariff is on file with the South Dakota Public Utilities Commigsion,
and copies may be inspected, during normal business houxy, &t L

company's principal place of business.

Issued: TEF

Issued by: Richard Cree, President
1544 Valwood Parkway, Suite 12
Carrollton, Texas 75006



T-NETIX TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES, INC. ORIGINAL SHEET

7

BOUTH DAKOTA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION TARLFF

CONCURRING, CONNECTING OR

OTHER PARTICIPATING CARRIERS

1. Concurring Carriers - None
2. Connecting Carriers - None

3. Other Participating Carriers - None

issued:

Issued by: Richard Cree, ?
1544 Valwood Pa
Carrcllton, Texas




ORTGINAL SHEET 4

T.NETIX TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES, INC.
TRRIFF M. I

SOUWTH DAKOTA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION

CHECK SHEET

%1;‘

The Sheets of this tariff are effective as of ©
the bottom of the respective sheet (s). Original
as named below comprise all changes from the

uxlentlv in effect as of the date on the bor

g i s
=4 £

* - New or Revised Sheet

Issued:

Issued by: Richard Cree, President
1544 Valwood Parkway, Sulte
Carrollton, Texas 75006




Section 4 - RaAbES. . ... e oo insssesns

Issued:

Issued by: Richard Cr=e,
1544 Valwood F
Carrcllton, Texas













T-NETIX TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES, INC. ORIGINAL SHEET 5
SOUTH DAKOTA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION TARIFF HO. &

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Title SHEE T . ittt e e e e e e s R
Check Sheet . . o i e e e e e e e
Section 1 - Technical Terms and Abbreviationa. . L8
Section 2 - Rules and Regulations................L%

—~ O - -~ o ] . R = S



T.METTIX TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES, INC. ORIGINAL SHEET

HSOUTH DAKOTA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION

TARIFF HG.

SYMBOLS

0 - Delete or Discontinue

g
1

Change Resulting In An
Increase to A Customer's Bill

¥ - Moved from Another Tariff Location
N - New
R - Change Resulting In A

REeduction to A Customer's Bill

T - Change in Text or Regulatiocon
But No Change In Rate or Charge

e

Issued by: Richard Cree, President
1544 Valwood Parkway, Sults 102
Carrollton, Texas 75006



T-NETIX TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES, INC. ORIGINAL SHEEY #
§0UTH DAKOTA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION TARIFEF NO. 1

TARIFF FORMAT

A. Sheet Numbering - Sheet numbers appear in the
corner of the page. Sheets are numbered sequenitis
& new sheet 1s added between sheets already in
decimal i1is added. For example, a new sheet ad
sheets 14 and 15 would be 14.1.

B. Sheet Revigion Numbers - Revision numbers
upper right corner of each page. These
determine the most current sheet verbivn
Commission. For example, the 4th revised & ;
3rd revised Sheet 14. Consult the Check S«r
currently in effect.

. Paragraph Numbering Sequence - There ars i
paragraph coding. Each level of coding is subser
next higher level:

2.
2.1.
2.1.1.
2.1.1.A.
2.1.1.A.1.
2.12.1.A.1.(a).
2.1.1.A.1.(a).I.
D. Check Sheets - When a tariff filing is

Commission, an updated Check Sheet acoomnpe
filing. The Check Sheet lists the sheet
tariff, with a cross reference to the current
When new sheets are added, the Check Sh
reflect the revision. All revisions made
are designated by an asterisk (*}. Thers
symbols used on thisg sheet if these are
to it {(i.e., the format, etc. remain
revision levels on some sheets.)

Issued: Effective:

ssued by: Richard Cree, President
1544 Valwood Parkway, Suite 102
Carrollton, Texas 7500¢




Sy TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES, INC. ORIGINAL SHEET 8
AEOTA PURLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION TARIFF NO. 1

SECTION 1 - TECHNICAL TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS

snimgion - South Dakota Public Utilities Commission.

%aﬁﬂw@ailwct Ccall - A billing arrangement by which the charges for
! e billed to the called party without the in ntervention
perator, provided the called party agrees Lo accept che
"he Called Party is responsible for charges Asjcr'a“ed

.-1

.

Automated Person-to-Person Collect Call - A service in which the
/ huj designate a specific individual, station number O
iﬁw with whom he or she wishes to speak. Call charges do not
until the caller acknowledges the called party or an dgkaeﬁ

{1’1

srrate. The Called Party is responsible for charge
with the call.

Uslled Party - The person, individual, corporation or other ent:ity
hone number is called. The Called Party is responsi
of the charges for use of T-NETIX's automated collec

Company or Carrier - T-NETIX Telecommunications Services, Inc.
g5 otherwise clearly indicated by the context.

~on f inement Facilities - Prisons, jails, correctional instilt Bats]
: places of confinement wused for penalty purposas.
Facilities are Subscribers of T-NETIX's services and

seyvice avallable to Inmates.
firm, partnerﬁhio, cor

rhe Company s te]ecommunlcarLOUM
for payment of charges, all under t}

rhis price list. Includes the inmate

Effective:

Y Richard Cr=e, President
1544 Valwood Parkway, Suite 102
Carrollton, Texas 75006



L TELECOMMUNTCATIONS SERVICES, INC. ORIGINAIL SHEET 9
ARCPA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION TARIFF NO. 1

SHOTION 1 - TECHNICAL TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS, CON'T.

hroughout this tariff to refer to T-NETIX
Services, Inc.

The jailled population of Confinement Facilities. Inmates
i T-NETIX's system.

Exchange Company.

Bumrdinates - Geographic points which define the originating
ring points of a call in mathematical terms sc that the
is

leage of the call may be determined. Call mileage
rhe purposed of rating calls.

Effective:

Richard Cree, President
1544 Valwood Parkway, Suite 102
Carrvollton, Texas 75006



SERVICES, INC. ORIGINAIL SHEET 10
FIEE COMMISSION TARIFF NO. 1

% « RULES AND REGULATIONS
Company
facilities are furnished for

ar specified points within the
rermsg of this tariff

ma, and maintains the communications
under 1n accordance with the terms
-+ under this tariff. Service 1s
racilities for use by Inmates. T-
ement Facility's agent for ordering
z provided by other carriers or
to allow connection of a

rices and facilities are provided on a
otherwige provided, and are available
day, seven days per week.

timited to "0+" collect calling for

ffered subject to the availability of
¥ facilities and equipment, or both
and equipment, and subject to the
~hig tariff.

o~

sprves the right to discontinue or limit
necessitated by conditions beyond its
shen service is used in violation of
rhis tariff, or in viclation of the

Effective:

rea, President
posol Parkway, Suite 102
Texas 75006



ORIGINAL SHEET 11
TARIFF NO. 1

PLON 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, CON'T.

ationg, con't.

2.2.4 T company does not undertake to transmit

snages, but offers the use of facilities when
1ilable, and will not be liable for errors in
atemission or for failure to establish
vomriect Lons.,

Y

F
b

- . ~vice provided to Correctional Facilities for use
Inmates may be otherwise limited by the
ministration of the institution at its

digoretion.

: provided under this tariff may be used for any lawful
‘ny which the service is technically suited subject to
imposed by the Correctional Facility.

o
oy

.4 Ireserved for future use}

Effective:

~hard Cree, President
4 Valwood Parkway, Suite 102
rollton, Texas 75006

= 3
& W e
*‘ﬁlﬁﬂ




ETIX TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES, INC. ORIGINAL SHEET 12

BLATTH DAKOTR PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION TARIFF NO. 1

e, H
2.5

3
B
£

SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, CON'T.

Taxes

&1l state and local taxes (i.e. gross receipts tax, sgalses
tax, municipal utilities tax) are listed as separate line
items and are not included in the quoted rates.

Installation and Termination

Bervice 1is  installed upon mutual agreement between the
vonfinement Facility and the Company. The service agresment
aces not alter rates specified in this tariff.

Billing and Payment For Service

W Payment for Service

The Customer is responsible for payment of all cha A LTS
for services and equipment furnished to the Custum@r e
to an end user of the Customer by T-NETIX. All charces
due by the Customer are payable to the Companv or Lo arny
agency duly authorized to receive such payments (such as
a local exchange company).

B. Disputed Charges

Charges billed directly by the Company are due
receipt. Amounts not paid within 10 days of bhﬁ *r“
will be considered past due. For charges billed
by the Company, notice from the Customer

to charges must be received in writing ;
within thirty (30) days after the dare @'
Otherwise, all charges will be considere
binding.

R

:

For charges billed through the Custom
carrier, notice from the Customer of
must be received in writing by the Comp

{90) days after the date of the
Otherwise, all charges will be considered
binding on the Customer.

Effective

Richard Cree, President
1544 Valwood Parkway, Suite 102
Carrcollton, Texas 75006



T-NETIX TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES, INC. ORIGINAL SHEEY 13
S0UTH DAKOTA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION TRRIFY wH. L

2.7

SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, CON'T
Billing and Payment For Service, Con't.
B. Disputed Charges, con't.

The Company will promptly investigate
parties as to its findings concerning
Adjustments to Customer's bills shall
that circumstances exist which reasons
changes are appropriate. Customer

Dakota Public Utilities Commissi
unresolved dispute at 500 East C
5070, (605) 773-3201, (800) 332- ?
Service South Dakota- (800} 877-1113

)—J(D

st}
ﬁ

C. Validation of Credit

The Company reserve
creditworthiness of Cu
avallable wverification
maximum predetermined credi
billing method cannot be
amount established, the
service.

Services provided by the Comp
of confinement facilities
authorized programs. The
confinement facility adopt,
that enable the Company Lo
inmate calls, 1nblﬂd;nq wirh
of calls by the Company ﬁa
the amount charged toc such
predetermined amount or bhecomes

D. Advance Payments

The Company doss not normal
for service. Howeve
determines an adv
reserves the right
{2) month's estima
service. This will
charges and a new
the next menth, if

Issued: Effeoct

Issued by: Richard Cree,

1544 Valwood
Carrollton, T




THETIX TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES, INC. ORIGINAL SHEET 14
HOUTH DAKOTA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION TARIFF NO. 1

SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, CON'T.
2.7 Billing and Payment For Service, Con't.
E Deposits
The Company does not normally require deposits. However

the company reserves the right to collect a deposit from
customers whose credit history is unacceptable or unknown

to the Company. Deposits, if collected, will be
collected and maintained in accordance with Commission
rules.

For services provided to inmates of confinem
facilities, the Company may require a deposit from bill

parties for charges which exceed a maximum credit amount
predetermined by the Company based on the Customer's
credit worthiness. The Customer may exceed thig

S

predetermined credit amount by first
the Company in an amount equal
additional credit authorization

Customer.

aving a deposit
o the amount
~equested by

13
.
T
v
I

B, Return Check Charge

A return check charge of $20.00 will be
checks returned for insufficient funds. Am
return check charges will be assessed accowd.
terms and conditions of the Company or itsg kil
and pursuant to South Dakota law.

Tegued: Effective:

Tassued by: Richard Cree, President
1544 Valwood Parkway, Suite 102
Carrollton, Texas 75006



T-NETIX TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES, INC.
SOUTH DAXOTA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION

SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONE,

2.8 Refusal or Discontinuance by Company

T-NETIX may refuse or discont:
conditions. Unlesq otherw

Facility or Inmate wi
and allowed a reasor
remedy any deflc lency.

(a)

For non-complian
municipal law,
telephone service.

For the use cf tel
Or purpose other

For neglect or
the Company for
of equipment ow

Fer non- pOup
Commission'
regulations on

For non-payment of

Issued:

Issued by:




T-NETIX TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES, INC,
SOUTH DAKOTA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION

SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS,

2.8 Refusal or Discontinuance by Company

(i} For failure of the Confinemen:
application for service.

(1) For Confl emenL FPacil

(k) When necessary for
or request of any
jurisdiction.

2.9 Credit Allowance for Interruption of

Credit allowances for
the initial minimum
interrupted call.

2.10 Inspection, Testing and Adjusiment

Upon reasonable notice, the
shall be made availabls
adjustments as may be e
maintenance. No in
the time during wh ‘r
the interruption is

&
A
3

2.11 Positive Acceptance
No charges shall be
Called Party clearly :
to accept and pay for

P

Issued:

Issued by:




T-NETIX TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES, INC. ORIGINEL 5%
SOUTH DAKOTA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION TRE

SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVIUE

3.1 General

Service is offered to Inmates of
Inmates may place collect calls usin

3.2 Timing of Calls

3.2.1 Long distance usage chulges
T-NETIX's network. The Cor
a call has been estabhl
standard answer detect i
hardware answer detection.

3.2.2 Chargeable time for a call
by either party.

3.2.3 The minimum call
one minute.

3.2.4 After the minimum call d
up to the next higher
purposes.
3.2.5 No charges apply .
Issued: BEfaot B
Issued by: Richard Cree, Prasident

1544 Valwood Parkway, Sulte
Carrollton, Texas 7EO06




T-NETIX TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES, INC. ORIGINAL BHEET i8
SOUTHE DAKOTA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION TARIFEF NO. I

3.3

SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE, CON'T.

Calculation of Distance

Usage charges for all mileage sensitive product 5
the airline distance between the rate centers associs
the originating and terminating points of the

The distance between the originating and termi
calculated by using the "V" and "H" coord
centers, as defined by AT&T in its Tariff
with the FCC in the following manner:

Step 1 - Obtain the "V" and "H"

Step 2 - Obtain the difference between the
Obtain the Difference between the "H" coard

Step 3 - Square the differences obtained in Step o

Step 4 - Add the squares of the #yn
difference obtained in Step 3.

Step 5 - Divide the sum of the
ten (10). Round to the next

Step 6 - Obtain the square root of the whe
in Step 5. Round to the next higher wh
fraction is obtained. This is the V&l m
originating and terminating points of Lhe

L

Formula:

Isgued: Effect ive:

T

Issued by: Richard Cree, Presiden

1544 Valwood Parkway, Suite 103
Carrollton, Texas 75004



T-NETIX TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES, INC.
SOUTH DAKOTA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION

SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE, Con'T,
3.4 T-NETIX's Automated Collect Operator Servica

T-NETIX provides Automated Collec:
Calls are billed to the Called PBar:
actively accept charges for the
charge applies to each call, ¢t
depending upon the class of the

O

Classes of Calls

Automated Collect tat;on

placed by an Inmate who dial
to route the call and who
prompts, enabling the CaTle\
for the call. If the Calls
call, the call is terminated

Automated Collect Person-
are placed by an
required to route
System prompts to
basis (i.e. specify
placed). The Called
the charges. If the
call, the call is t:

Other Charges

Inmate Station Services hs

ice Cha
collect calls which are DLAC
facilities when such calls
Technologies' own processing
applies in addition to ali appli
operator assistance sgearvios
tariff.

Issued:

Issued by: Richard Cree,
1544 vValwood
Carrollton,




T-NETIX TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES, INC.
SOUTH DAKOTA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION

SECTION 4 - RATES

4.1 General

Each call is billed individually to the
the charges. Charges are computed on an
as described in Section 3.2 of thig tar
is billed based on their use ¢f
service.

The charges for T-NETIX services

- distance betwsen stationsg

- duration of the call

- class of call

- jurisdictional nature of ohe
interLATA)

e

4.2 DAutomated Operator Service Charges

All automated operator assisted cal
service charges. These charges app
will be added to the usage charges

e

Issued:

Issued by: Richard Cree,
1544 Valwood Parkw
Carrollton,




T-HETIX TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES, INC.
SCUTH DAKOTA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION

ORIGINAL
TARIPF RO,

4%
b
kA

4,3 S8Schedule 1

T-NETIX Automated Operator IntraLATA Service

SECTION 4 - RATES, CON'T.

4.3.1 Auto-Collect Service Usage Rates
DAY EVENING
MILES Initial add’1 Initial Add’ 1
Minute Minute Minute Minute
ALL $0.29 $0.29 50.27 50.27
Per Call Service Charge
Pay Phone Charge
Local Charge
Issued: Effective:
Issued by:

Richard Cree,
1544 Valwood

Carrcllton,




D HETTX TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES, INC.
SOUrH DAKOTA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION

ORIGINAL SHEET
TARIFE HU.

SECTION 4 - RATES, CON'T.
.3 Schedule 1, continued
T-NETIX Autcmated Operator InterLATA Service, continued
4.3.2 Automated Operator Service Charges
_ DAY EVENING !
WILES Initial ndd’ 1 Initial add'1 | Imitial add’ L
Minute Minute Minute Minute | Minute | Minute
. ALL $0.47 $0.47 $0.47 £0.47 | 50,47 G,
Per Call
Charges
Per Call Service Charge £3.400

Issued:

Izsued by:

Effoct i

Richard Cree, President
1544 Valwood Parkway, &
Carrollton, Texas 75006




T-NETIX TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES, INC. QRIGINAL BHE

SOUTH DAKOTA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION

SECTION 4 - RATES, CON'T.

4.3 BSchedule 1, continued
T-NETIX Automated Operator IntralLATA Service, contisued

4.4 Rate Periods: Time-of-Day and Holiday Pericds

The following time of day periods apply to ali
rate schedules.

Day: Monday through Friday, SaM to 4:%% pm

Evening: Sunday though Friday, 5PM to 10:!

Night: 11PM to 7:59 AM every day
All day Saturday
Sunday 8AM to 4:59PM

Holiday: For recognized holidays, the evenins
applies unless a lower rabte wo
apply. The following ara Conppany
holidays.

New Year's Day (Janusry 1)

Martin Luther King Day {as Fedarslly
Thanksgiving Day {as Federally
Christmas Day (Decombar 1%}

Issued:

Issued by: Richard Cre
1544 Valwoo
Carrolliten,




South Dakota Public Utilities Commission
WEEKLY FILINGS
For the Period of April 19, 2001 through April 25, 2601

if you need a compiete copy of a filing faxed, overnight expressed, or mafted to YL |
contact Delaine Kelbo within five business days of this filing., Phone: 8057733708 §
605-773-3808

Yy

1

CONSUMER COMPLAINTS

CTU-018 In the Matter of the Complaint filed by Delores Denke, Rapid City, 8
against Qwest Corporation Regarding Deceptive Pragtice.

The Complainant alleges that she was not made aware of the distincian betwass
providers. The Complainant further states that she was not aware tha! Crwes
and feels that Qwest has taken advantage of her by not making it claar ¢
distance automatically. The Complainant requests that Qwas: he rEspnnsg
phone bill and that Qwest notify all customers that there 15 a differance i nsts
providers.

Staff Analyst: Mary Healy
Staff Attorney: Kelly Frazier
Date Fited: 04/18/01
Intervention Deadling: N/A

TELECOMMUNICATIONS

TCO01-043 In the Matter of the Application of NOS Communicition
Authority to Provide Local Exchange Services in South Dakets.

e e n On

NOS Communications, Inc. (NOS) is seeking a Certificate of Authori
telecommunications services throughout South Dakata NOS inte
including measured, flat rate, PBX, Centrex, and value addsd sorvs
basis.

Staff Analyst: Heather Fornay
Staff Attorney: Karen Cremer
Date Docketed: 04/18/01
Intervention Deadline: 05/11/01

TCU1-044 in the Matter of the Application of T-NETIX Telecommunicntinss
Certificate of Authority to Provide Interexchange Telecommuni
South Dakota.

T-NETIX Telecommunications Services, inc {T-NETIX) 15 sa¢
intrastate interexchange telecommunications services throus
offer specialized call processing and other services to the corres
limited to collect calls initiated by inmates from com telepheos
call control features including: one-way, out-gong only sen

900 and other calls; caller ID blocking to outside parbes, and sa?

423

&

Staff Analyst: Heather Forney
Staff Attorney: Karen Cremer
Date Docketed: 04/23/01
Intervention Deadline: 05/11/01



Lance J.M. Steinhart, P.C.
Attorney At Law
6455 East Johns Crossing
Suite 285
Duluth, Georgia 30097

Also Admitted in New York
and Maryland

April 20, 2001
YIA OVERNIGHET DELIVERY

Delaine Kolbo

South Dakota Public Utilities Commission
500 East Capitol Avenue

Ave-Pierre, SD 57501-5070

{605) 773-3201

Re: T-NETIX Telecommunications Services. lnc,
Inmate Service Providers

Dear Mr. Bullard:

Enclosed is original check number 71699 in the &
Dakota Public Utilities Commission" for the filing fee. This
Application for Registration of a Telecommunications Cor
11, 2001.

Also enclosed is an extra copy of this cover letter to be dite 3
the enclosed self-addressed prepaid envelope.

If you have any questions or if | may provide v with sy g
not hesitate to contact me.

Legal Assistant 1o
Lance J.M. Steinhan
Attorney for T-NETIX Tulee

Enclosures



T-NETIX, INC. s |

67 INVERNESS DRIVE EAST Check No. -

ENGLEWOOD, CO 80112 Check Date -
(303) 790-9111

DETACH STATEMENT BEFORE DEPOSITING

T-NETIX, INC.
67 INVERNESS DRIVE EAST
ENGLEWOOD, CO 80112
(303) 790-9111

1 pay

South Dakota Public Utilitiess Comsigsid
State Capitol Building

500 East Capitol Avenue

Pierre, SD 57501-5070

CHIDER DF:

P07 B HOLLLLSLL3E BV



BEFORE THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
OF THE STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA
IN THE MATTER OF THE APPLICATION OF T- )
NETIX TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES,

)
INC. FOR A CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY TO  }
PROVIDE INTEREXCHANGE }
)
)

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES IN
SCUTH BAKOTA

On April 23, 2001, the Public Utilities Cormmission i
with SDCL 49-31-3 and ARSD 20:10:24:02 and 20:10:24.05 ¢

a certificate of authority from T-NETIX Telecommunicatinns

T-NETIX proposes to offer specialized calt proce
corrections industry. The services will be fimited to c;’?nzx ‘
coin telephones in correctional facilities. T-NETIX will offe
one-way, out-going only service: blocked ancess
calls; caller ID blocking to outside parties, ang
proposed tariff was filed by T-NETIX. The Com
service as fully competitive.

On April 26, 2001, the Commiission elecironically ram
the intervention deadline of May 11, 2001, ta i iz
petitions to intervene or comments werg F’M and al i

Commission considered T-NETIX's request for &tzﬁl‘t
recommended granting a certificate of autherity. sub
offer a prepaid calling card or require deposits ot Mo, :
of the Commission. Commission Staff mrxhﬁsr rRL
20:10:24:02(8) and 20:10:24:05(4), (6} and {7}

Yind!

The Commission finds that it has jursdichon
Chapter 49-31, specifically 49-31-3 and ARSD o0
Commission finds that T-NETIX has met tha fngal rem
granting of a certificate of authority. T-NETIX mi«:
demonstrated sufficient technical, financiat and
telecommunications services in South Dakota ‘{@:,;'
is good cause to waive ARSD 20:10:24 28y 2
Commission approves T-NETIX's application for & s
condition that T-NETIX not offer a prepaid calting car
payments without prior approval of the Commission
in this matter, it is therefore

ORDERED, that T-NETIX's apphcation for &
granted, effective June 22, 2001, subiect 1o the conditn




calling card or require deposits or advance payments without LRGr ang
Commission. Itis

FURTHER ORDERED, that the Commission finds good causse 1o
20:10:24:02(8) and 20:10:24:05(4), (6) and (7).

FURTHER ORDERED, that T-NETIX shall file informatianal
with the Commission as the changes occur.

Dated at Pierre, South Dakota, this _/.2/

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

The undersigned hereby cerlifies that this
document has been served today upon ali parties of
record in this docket, as listed on the docket service
list, by first class mail, in properly addressed
envelopes, w;ﬂh charges prepaid thereon.

By; /W e ’:f// A/Léif
Date; 5 / /. & / &/

(OFFICIAL SEAL)




SOUTH DAKOTA PUBLIC UTH
COMMISSION

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

G i A AR

To Conduct Business As A Telecemmunications Company
Within The State of South Dakota

-y
t

Authority was Granted effective as of Juns 224
Docket No. TCQO1-044

This is to cerlify that
T-NETIX TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES,

is authorized to provide interexchange tetecommunication

South Dakota, subject to the condition that it not offer a pr

card or require deposits or advance payments without prios
Commission.

20:10:24:02, and is subject to all of the conditions and |
rules and statutes governing its conduct of offering telaco

Dated at Pierre, South Dakota, this /7 _day of _7

SOUTH DAKOTA PUBLIC
UTILITIES COMMISSION:

B TR






